
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  
 

Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, November 13, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE led by Boy Scout Troop 787 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION - NONE 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  October 9, 2012 Regular Meeting; October 23, 2012 Special Meeting - Joint 

Study Session with the Arts Commission; October 23, 2012 Regular Meeting; and 
November 3, 2012 Special Meeting – Budget Workshop (Scott) 

C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
1. Approve Contract for City Hall Carpet Replacement (Scott) 
2. Consider Resolution Amending Development, Building Permit, and Admin Fees (Hart) 
3. Consider 2013 Legislative Agenda (Matheson) 
4. 2012 Third Quarter Financial Reports (Hendrickson) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


 

Consent Agenda Item C-1 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date:  November 13, 2012   
 
SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  OCTOBER 9, 2012 CITY COUNCIL REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES; OCTOBER 23, 2012 CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT 
STUDY SESSION WITH ARTS COMMISSION MINUTES; OCTOBER 23, 2012 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES; AND  NOVEMBER 3, 2012 
CITY COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP MINUTES. 

 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Sharon G. Scott, City Clerk 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  Proposed Minutes  
 
PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION:  
 
ALTERNATIVES:   
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance   _____ Resolution     X     Motion              Other  
 

Councilmember __________ moves, Councilmember ___________ 
seconds, to approve the October 9, 2012 City Council Regular 
Meeting Minutes; October 23, 2012 City Council Special Joint 
Study Session with Arts Commission Minutes; October 23, 2012 
City Council Regular Meeting Minutes; and November 3, 2012 
City Council Budget Workshop Minutes. 

 
 
 

1 of 96



Unapproved Draft – October 9, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, October 9, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, October 
9, 2012, at 7:02 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff 
Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel Manager; Richard Hart, Community 
Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; 
Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Scott Thomas, Parks 
& Recreation Director; and Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the assistance of Troop 448 Boy Scouts Eli Knobloch and 
Patrick Kissinger who lead the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Snoey seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION: 
Lisa Parsons, Executive Director, Middle Green River Coalition, gave a report on the Cedar 
Downs Natural Area.  Ms. Parsons indicated she would like to organize a tour of the area for city 
councilmembers and parks commissioners to give an in depth look at the park.  In addition, Ms. 
Parsons requested council support for a memorial honoring former Maple Valley Councilman 
Gary Patrick who was instrumental in preserving this section of the park. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Barb Burnsed, not a Covington resident, resident of the Northern Notch area, thanked the 
Council for its efforts in trying to convince King County to add the Notch to the city’s urban 
growth area and asked the Council to continue its efforts. 
 
Mark Pursley, Executive Director, Greater Maple Valley Community Center, spoke 
regarding Agenda Item No. 3, Recommendations for 2013-2014 Human Services Grant Funding, 
in particular the Center’s request for funding to hire an additional driver for its transportation 
program. 

2 of 96



Unapproved Draft – October 9, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 
 

 2 

 
Barry Anderson, BranBar, LLC, thanked Council for its efforts with the Northern Notch and 
the comprehensive plan amendment process currently in front of King County. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Vouchers #28269-28327, in the Amount of $991,433.80, Dated September 18, 2012; 

Vouchers #28328-28328, in the amount of $2,821.35, Dated September 27, 2012; and 
Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000758469-1000758477 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000758479-1000758480 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$146,417.02, Dated September 28, 2012. 
 

Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING:  
1.  Receive Public Testimony and Consider Ordinance Adopting Kent School District’s Six Year 
Capital Facilities Plan and School Impact Fees. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
Gwenn Escher-Derdowski, Planning Administrator, Finance Department, Kent School 
District, noted the School District appreciates the past support from the City and looks forward 
to the adoption of the plan. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public hearing comment period. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-12 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COVINGTON, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
THE KENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 2013-2018 CAPITAL 
FACILITIES PLAN AND THE SCHOOL IMPACT FEE 
SCHEDULE FOR 2013 PURSUANT TO CMC 18.120.020, RCW 
36.70A, and RCW 82.02. 

 
Council Action:  Councilmember Snoey moved and Councilmember Scott seconded to pass 
Ordinance No. 15-12 adopting the Kent School District Impact Fee Schedule for 2013 
Pursuant to CMC 18.120.020, RCW 26.70A, and RCW 82.02.  Vote:  7-0.  Motion carried. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
2.  Continue Northern Notch Discussion. 
 

3 of 96



Unapproved Draft – October 9, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 
 

 3 

City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Community Development Director Richard Hart then reported on the King County Planning 
Directors meeting of Thursday, October 4, at which a presentation was given on the buildable 
lands process. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart provided responses. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to send the thank you letter included in the 
meeting agenda packet to the King County Council in December. 
 
3.  Recommendations for 2013-2014 Human Services Grant Funding. 
 
Personnel & Human Service Analyst Victoria Throm gave the staff report on this item and 
provided an additional handout to support the other materials in the agenda packet. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Ms. Throm and members of the 
Human Services Commission provided responses. 
 
4.  City Manager’s 2013 Budget Message. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions, and Mr. Matheson provided responses. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
Councilmember Mhoon reported on the Suburban Cities Association Public Issues Committee 
support for a King County stewardship program that provides a safe and effective means for 
disposal of pharmaceutical products. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to support the Suburban Cities 
Association’s position to encourage the King County Board of Health to establish a 
medicine return program. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
Steve Pand, Covington resident, advised he was troubled with the need for additional taxes, 
and as a Covington citizen he would be much more troubled by a $100 car tab fee than he would 
by an increase in the sales tax.  In addition, Mr. Pand expressed his support for any continued 
lobbying efforts that could be done regarding the Northern Notch. 
 
There being no further comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 

4 of 96



Unapproved Draft – October 9, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 
 

 4 

ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:08 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

5 of 96



Unapproved Draft – October 23, 2012 Special Joint Study Session with Arts Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
City Council Special Joint Study Session with Arts Commission Minutes 

Tuesday, October 23, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Special Joint Study Session with the Arts Commission was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, October 
23, 2012, at 6:03 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
David Lucavish. 
 
ARTS COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: 
Sandy Bisordi, Lesli Cohan, Jonathan Combs, and Ed White. 
 
ARTS COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: 
Gini Cook. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Pat Patterson, Recreation Manager; Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation 
Director; and Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the study session to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to approve the agenda. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Public Art in Covington – Path to our Destination. 
 
Arts Commission Chair Sandy Bisordi provided opening remarks, and Vice Chair Ed White gave 
a slide show presentation. 
 
There was discussion among councilmembers and commissioners. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson informed the Arts Commission about the branding process 
currently under development and suggested there might be value in slowing down the schedule 
by a couple of months so that a theme could be developed that is in line with that larger brand 
which will be used by the city, the Chamber, and the Economic Development Council. 
 

6 of 96



Unapproved Draft – October 23, 2012 Special Joint Study Session with Arts Commission 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 
 

 2 

Chair Bisordi agreed that if the city had a brand, this would give direction in which to see what 
kind of creativity grows out of that rather than going off in several different directions. 
 
Both council and commission expressed interest in meeting again. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:06 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 
 

7 of 96



Unapproved Draft – October 23, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 
 

 1 

City of Covington 
Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, October 23, 2012 
 
(This meeting was recorded and will be retained for a period of six years from the date of the 
meeting). 
 
The Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Covington was called to order in the City 
Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Tuesday, October 
23, 2012, at 7:18 p.m., with Mayor Harto presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, Mark Lanza, David Lucavish (arrived @ 8:20 p.m.), Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, 
Wayne Snoey, and Jeff Wagner. 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, 
Community Relations Coordinator; Sara Springer, City Attorney; Scott Thomas, Parks & 
Recreation Director; Casey Parker, Senior Accountant; Salina Lyons, Senior Planner; and Sharon Scott, 
City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Council Action:  Councilmember Scott moved and Councilmember Wagner seconded to 
excuse Councilmember Lucavish who was attending the Kent School District Advisory 
Committee meeting.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Harto opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:   
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA: 
C-1. Minutes:  September 25, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
C-2. Vouchers:  Vouchers #28329-28387, in the Amount of $165,555.48, Dated October 2, 

2012; Vouchers #28388-28444, in the amount of $435,100.01, Dated October 16, 2012; 
and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000783081-1000783089 and Paylocity Payroll Checks 
#1000783094-1000783095 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$141,448.36, Dated October 12, 2012. 
 

8 of 96



Unapproved Draft – October 23, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 
 

 2 

Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Consent Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS
Human Services Commission – Chair Haris Ahmad reported on the October 11 site visit. 

: 

 
Arts Commission – Chair Sandy Bisordi reported on the October 11 meeting. 
 
Budget Priorities Advisory Committee – Finance Director Rob Hendrickson reported on the 
October 3 and October 17 meetings. 
 
Parks & Recreation Commission – Chair Steven Pand reported on the October 17 meeting. 
 
Economic Development Council – Co-Chair Jeff Wagner reported on the September 27 
meeting. 
 
Planning Commission – No report.  The October 4 and October 17 meetings were canceled. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
1.  Receive Testimony Regarding Fiscal Year 2013 Budget and Revenue Sources. 
 
Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Mayor Harto called for public comments for the public hearing. 
 
There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period for the public 
hearing. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  
2.  Branding Exercise. 
 
Community Relations Coordinator Karla Slate led the exercise. 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS: 
Councilmembers and staff discussed Future Agenda Topics and made comments. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson asked Council if there was any direction to commissioners or 
staff regarding the joint meeting with the Arts Commission such as further research and/or 
reports. 
 
Council Action:  There was Council consensus to direct staff to provide information on the 
feasibility and steps to implement the art funding program.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
Mayor Harto called for public comments. 
 

9 of 96



Unapproved Draft – October 23, 2012 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 
 

 3 

There being no comments, Mayor Harto closed the public comment period. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:18 p.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 

10 of 96



Unapproved Draft – November 3, 2012 Budget Workshop Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 

 1 

 
City of Covington 

City Council Budget Workshop Minutes 
Saturday, November 3, 2012 

 
The Budget Workshop was called to order in the City Council Chambers, 16720 SE 271st Street, 
Suite 100, Covington, Washington, Saturday, November 3, 2012, at 8:05 a.m., with Mayor Harto 
presiding. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: 
Margaret Harto, David Lucavish, Marlla Mhoon, Jim Scott, Wayne Snoey (arrived @ 8:15 a.m.), 
and Jeff Wagner. 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS ABSENT: 
Mark Lanza 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 
Derek Matheson, City Manager; Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director; Noreen Beaufrere, Personnel 
Manager; Richard Hart, Community Development Director; Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director; Kevin 
Klason, Covington Police Chief; Karla Slate, Community Relations Coordinator; Scott Thomas, Parks & 
Recreation Director; Bill Fealy, Maintenance Worker - Arborist; Casey Parker, Senior Accountant; and 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk/Executive Assistant. 
 
Mayor Margaret Harto called the budget workshop to order. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Council Action:  Councilmember Wagner moved and Councilmember Mhoon seconded to 
approve the Agenda.  Vote:  6-0.  Motion carried. 
 
ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION: 
1.  Department 2013 Budget Presentations. 
 

a. Executive.  City Manager Derek Matheson gave the presentation on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, Mr. Matheson provided responses. 

 
b. Finance and Miscellaneous Departments.  Finance Director Rob Hendrickson gave the 

presentation on this item. 
 
c. Community Development.  Community Development Director Richard Hart gave the 

presentation on this item. 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Hart provided responses. 
 
d. Public Works.  Public Works Director Glenn Akramoff gave the presentation on this 

item. 

11 of 96



Unapproved Draft – November 3, 2012 Budget Workshop Minutes 
Submitted for Approval:  November 13, 2012 
 

 2 

 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Akramoff provided 
responses. 
 
The Council recessed at 9:35 a.m. for a short break and reconvened at 9:50 a.m. 

 
e. Parks & Recreation.  Parks & Recreation Director Scott Thomas gave the presentation on 

this item. 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Thomas provided responses. 
 
f. Police.  Police Chief Kevin Klason gave the presentation on this item. 
 

Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Chief Klason provided responses. 
 
2.  Review Budget Strategies. 
 
City Manager Derek Matheson gave the staff report on this item. 
 
Councilmembers provided comments and asked questions, and Mr. Matheson provided 
responses. 
 
3.  Discuss Budget Presentations. 
 
Councilmembers asked questions and discussed the 2013 budget presentations.  Council 
concurred to consider funding the decision card for the redundant server. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 11:30 a.m. 
 
Prepared by:      Submitted by:  
 
__________________________________         
Joan Michaud      Sharon Scott 
Senior Deputy City Clerk    City Clerk 
 
 

12 of 96



 

Consent Agenda Item C-2 
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date:  November 13, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT:  APROVAL OF VOUCHERS.  
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S)

 

:  Vouchers #28448-28454 and Voided Vouchers #28445-28447, in the 
Amount of $2,781.31, Dated October 23, 2012; Vouchers #28455-28513, in the amount of 
$413,812.03, Dated October 29, 2012; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000808342-1000808353 
Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $143,462.62, Dated October 26, 
2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000836342-1000836355 Inclusive, Plus Employee 
Direct Deposits in the Amount of $139,346.29, Dated November 9, 2012. 

PREPARED BY:  Joan Michaud, Senior Deputy City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: Not applicable. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: Not applicable. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not applicable. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance _____ Resolution     X      Motion            Other  

 
Councilmember ___________ moves, Councilmember _________________ 
seconds, to approve for payment: Vouchers #28448-28454 and Voided 
Vouchers #28445-28447, in the Amount of $2,781.31, Dated October 23, 
2012; Vouchers #28455-28513, in the amount of $413,812.03, Dated 
October 29, 2012; Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000808342-1000808353 
Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of $143,462.62, 
Dated October 26, 2012; and Paylocity Payroll Checks #1000836342-
1000836355 Inclusive, Plus Employee Direct Deposits in the Amount of 
$139,346.29, Dated November 9, 2012.  
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 

13 of 96



14 of 96



15 of 96



16 of 96



17 of 96



18 of 96



19 of 96



20 of 96



21 of 96



22 of 96



23 of 96



24 of 96



25 of 96



26 of 96



27 of 96



28 of 96



29 of 96



30 of 96



31 of 96



Agenda Item 1  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 13, 2012  
 
SUBJECT:  AWARD CONTRACT TO LEGACY GROUP FOR REPLACEMENT CARPET 

FOR CITY HALL 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Proposed contract 
 
PREPARED BY: Sharon Scott, Executive Assistant/City Clerk 
 
EXPLANATION: 
The carpet on the lower floor of City Hall is showing significant signs of wear and tear.  There 
are many instances of seams coming apart, creating trip hazards to staff and visitors and posing a 
liability.  The existing carpet is the original carpet installed when the building was constructed 10 
years ago. 
 
The replacement product proposed by Legacy Group meets the criteria stated in our bid proposal 
for a medium to heavy traffic area standard performance product with a minimum 10 year 
warranty.  
 
The bid proposal is $49,630.92 and staff recommends adding a 10% contingency amount to 
cover unforeseen circumstances.  The expected total cost is $54,590.12. 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
Not buy replacement carpet and continue repairing the existing carpet. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
$54,590.12 for purchase and installation.  Capital funds to come out of Equipment Replacement 
Fund which has a balance of $67,688.  It is the intent of staff to propose a revision to the 
Equipment Replacement Fund to include furnishings.  In anticipation of that change, an amount 
equal to 1/10th of the estimated replacement cost needs to be set aside annually for 10 years.  The 
replacement cost would be funded through Central Services. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance         Resolution        Motion    X     Other 
 

Council member ____________ moves, Council member _________________ 
seconds, to award a contract in substantially the form attached to Legacy 
Group for replacement carpet for city hall. 
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager; City Attorney; Finance Director. 
 

32 of 96



ATTACHMENT 1

33 of 96



34 of 96



35 of 96



36 of 96



37 of 96



38 of 96



Agenda Item 2  
 Covington City Council Meeting 
 Date: November 13, 2012  
 
SUBJECT: DISCUSS AMENDMENTS TO THE DEVELOPMENT AND PERMIT FEES, 

ADMINISTRATIVE FEES, AND TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES FOR 2013 
 
RECOMMENDED BY: Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

1. Resolution adopting the 2013 Fee Resolution 
a. Exhibit A Proposed 2013 Development and Permit Fees and Administrative Fees 

Tables 
b. Exhibit B Transportation Impact Fees Rate Table 

2. Transportation Impact Fee Rate Table with 2.67% CPI Increase 
 
PREPARED BY:  Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
 
EXPLANATION: 
Adjustments to the development and permit fees, administrative fees, and transportation impact 
fees have historically been adjusted with the Consumer Price Index of Seattle-Tacoma (CPI-W), 
based on June to June of the previous year.  The CPI from June 2011- June 2012 was 2.67%; 
therefore, the council has the option to increase the 2013 development and permitting fees, 
administrative fees, and transportation impact fees by 2.67% CPI.  As proposed, all 2013 fees 
show an increase of 2.67%, with the exception of the following specifically adjusted fees.    
 
Specifically Adjusted Development Fees 
Staff has been able to build on the work from the 2008 Fee Study and staff time-tracking efforts 
to identify a few fee categories that need to be modified to align with the actual costs to perform 
the review and inspection services. Adjustments to the fees are based on an estimation of hours 
at the 2013 hourly billable rate of $136.  Some proposed fees are decreased and some are 
increased.   
 
1. Traffic Concurrency and Modeling (Schedule A): The fees shown in Schedule A were 

adopted in May 2012. At that time the council directed staff to apply a 62.5% “overhead” 
factor to the David Evans & Associates (DEA) cost for review. Due to the recent 
implementation of these fees and the set overhead factor to cover costs, staff is 
recommending that Traffic Concurrency and Modeling Fees (Schedule A) not be included in 
the annual CPI adjustment and instead be amended at such time DEA proposes rate changes 
that affect how we cover our costs for traffic and concurrency modeling review. 

 
2. Residential Land Development:  Staff is proposing to reduce the current residential land 

development fees, Section C, by 10%.  After reviewing existing data it was determined that 
the residential land use fees were starting to increase above actual time spent by staff to 
review the residential development projects.   
 

39 of 96



3. Environmental Review: Staff is proposing to eliminate different fees for issuing a 
Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) and a Mitigated Determination of Non-
Significance (MDNS) and reduce the fee from $4,941 to $1,360. Mitigation measures 
necessary under SEPA have been reduced substantially due to the implementation of code 
requirements, thus reducing staff time for issuing a determination.  The majority of the cost 
for SEPA compliance is the time and actual cost associated with the required mailings, 
publishing in the paper, and posting of the site.  In addition, a Determination of Significance 
(DS) was adjusted to account for 40 hours of staff time. Any staff time above the 40 hrs will 
be billed at the $136 hourly rate.  
 

4. Clearing and Grading: Staff is proposing to modify the clearing and grading fee table.  
Through the years, the existing table was increased by the CPI and as a result the calculation 
of the assessed fees would decrease as clearing and grading quantities increased.   
 
The proposed fees are based on an estimate of staff time spent on reviewing clearing and 
grading permits and the development review engineer’s time spent on inspections of sites. 
The modification of this chart results in a slight increase for small projects and a reduction of 
up to 50% for very large projects.  This may seem counter intuitive. However, larger grading 
projects do not require as much supervision since it takes longer for the grading activity. In 
contrast, small projects tend to have multiple activities occurring at once. Therefore, the 
inspector is on the site more frequently.  
 

5. Construction and Maintenance Inspection: The construction inspection fee is based on the 
total cost of the project and the maintenance fee is based on the cost of the public 
improvements as identified on the bond quantity worksheet submitted by the developer.  
Staff is proposing to modify the chart to combine the fees for construction and maintenance 
inspection and charge one fee based on the total bond quantity for the development.   
 
Most development projects have a bonding quantity of over $100,000 and the previous chart 
did not account for larger projects, such as large retail and medical facilities, that have 
bonding costs ranging from $500,000 to $1 million. Modification of the construction and 
maintenance fee table results in about a 30% reduction and aligns the fees with the time spent 
by staff for construction inspections and two years of maintenance monitoring and inspection 
for public improvements. 

 
6. Zoning Variance and Sign Variance: Staff is proposing to reduce the fees for zoning and sign 

variances from $8,881 to $6,800. Zoning and sign variances are a Type III hearing examiner 
decision and the fee accounts for staff time to process the application and hearing examiner 
costs associated with the public hearing. The new fees equates to approximately 50 hours of 
staff time at the billable rate of $136.  
 

7. Building Permit Fees:  Staff is proposing to modify the building permit fees to make 
corrections to the valuation table. As described for the other valuation charts, the fees have 
been skewed based on the CPI increase to each fee in the table.  The building permits will 
increase or decrease slightly depending on the size of the project in relation to the valuation. 

40 of 96



The fee modifications to the table do not result in a reduction of building permit fees 
anticipated in 2013.   
 

8. Fire Fees:  Staff is proposing to move to a valuation system for determining fire fees and 
eliminating the current process of itemizing each fire element. Staff has been working with 
the Kent Fire Regional Fire Authority (Kent RFA) to implement a fee structure that will 
capture both staff’s time and Kent RFA’s time to review permits. As a result, the valuation 
process will reflect about a 16% reduction but will still capture actual costs accrued by the 
Kent RFA and city for fire review.   
 

9. Administrative Fees: Staff is proposing to reduce the fee from $80 to $68.  Under the old 
MPS system staff spent a substantial amount of time tracking and processing the impact fee 
payments. This level of administrative work no longer exists since we moved traffic impact 
calculations in-house.  Staff is proposing to reduce the fee to account for a ½ hour of 
administrative time to cover our cost for coordinating funds with the city’s finance 
department.  
 

10. Transportation Impact Fee:  Staff is proposing to increase TIF fees based on the Institute of 
Traffic Engineers (ITE) Manual 9th Edition, rather than by the CPI.  David Evans and 
Associates provided an updated traffic impact fee rate table that captured trip generation 
based on the 9th edition of the ITE Manual.  The modification of the gross trip rates 
automatically updates the individual fees fee based on an average daily trip rate of $406.   
 
Attachment 1b is the modified TIF fee chart. The areas highlighted in red represent an 
increase in the fee and areas highlighted in green represent a decrease in the fee.  The areas 
highlighted in yellow represent a land use category updated from the ITE 7th edition.  
Adopting the ITE 9th Edition modifications will reduce the SFR impact fee by $44 dollars. 
An alternative method is to apply the CPI to the ITE 9th Edition factors and increase the daily 
trip rate by the CPI, which results in a $514 daily trip rate.  This methodology will increase 
the TIF as shown in Attachment 2.  
 

11. Technology Management Fee. The city collects a technology management fee for each 
transaction associated with a permit or land use action.  This fee is currently $39 and will 
increase to $40 in 2013. The technology management fee goes to the general fund. Staff is 
proposing that the methodology for collecting the technology management fee be modified.  
Instead of collecting the fee with each individual transaction, staff is proposing that the fee be 
collected with the final transaction associated with building related permits and also at each 
step in the land use process.  
 
For example, a technology management fee is assessed at building permit plan review and 
again at the time of building permit issuance; resulting in technology management fees of 
$78 collected for the one permit.  This fee is more noticeable on small permits such as 
mechanical, plumbing, and fire that also have a plan review and issuance fee.  These permits 
are often around $100- $200 dollars. With the inclusion of the per transaction requirement, 
the technology fees paid are almost as much as the permit.   

  

41 of 96



 
ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Do not implement the standard inflation rate of 2.67% to the fees. 
2. Adjust the Transportation Impact Fee average daily trip rate by 2.67% and adopt the fee 

resolution as proposed.  
3. Continue to collect the technology management fee at each transaction.  
4. Direct staff to make any other changes. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
The fees have been adjusted upward by the standard inflations factor and fiscal impacts will vary 
based on the application type. The proposed individual fee changes as outlined above should 
have minimal cumulative fiscal impact on the overall development services budget.     
 
A change in policy for the collection of the technology impact fee will result in a loss of revenue 
to the general fund.  In 2011, the city collected approximately $25,250 in Technology Fees. Year 
to date for 2012, the city has collected approximately $22,800. Approximately 25%-30% of the 
calculated totals were due to multiple transactions. If the technology is only collected once per 
permit it is anticipated that the revenue to the general fund would decrease by $5,700-$6,840, 
based on 2012 estimates. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:         Ordinance     X    Resolution        Motion      Other 
 

Council member _______________ moves, council member ______________ 
seconds, to pass a resolution amending the development and permit fees, 
administrative fees, and transportation impact fees for 2013, as proposed.   
 

REVIEWED BY: Community Development Director 
  Finance Director 
  City Manager 
  City Attorney 

42 of 96



 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 12-10 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF COVINGTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE 
DEVELOPMENT AND PERMIT FEES, ADMINISTRATIVE 
FEES, AND TRANSPORTATION IMPACT FEES FOR 2013. 
 

WHEREAS, certain sections of the Covington Municipal Code authorize the city to 
charge a fee for services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council has established a 100% cost recovery policy for land use, 

development, and building permits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council desires to maintain administrative fees for certain products and 

services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council desires to maintain transportation impact fees to fund capital 

improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council desires to modify the fee resolution to amend specific fees to 

reflect the actual time and cost of providing these services and to make other minor changes to 
the fee resolution; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Council desires to apply a 2.67% cost of living adjustment to the 2013 

development and permit fees, administrative fees, and transportation impact fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the 2.67% cost of living adjustment is based on the CPI.-W Seattle-Tacoma 

June to June Index published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics for the period 2011-2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, the individual valuation tables for clearing and grading, construction and 

maintenance inspections, building permits, and fire fees were adjusted to correct the calculations 
and modified to account for review costs.  The CPI was not applied to the valuation tables 
because the CPI will be reflected in the labor, materials, and contractor’s time and profit (cost of 
the project), which is used to determine valuation.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COVINGTON, 

WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Adoption of Fees.  Effective January 1, 2013, the city’s development and 

permit fees, administrative fees,  and transportation impact fees are hereby amended and adopted 
in the form as attached hereto as Exhibit “A” an Exhibit “B”, incorporated fully herein by this 
reference as if fully set forth. 

 

ATTACHMENT 1

43 of 96



 

Section 2.  Fee Waiver.  The city manager shall have the right to waive a fee if deemed in 
the best interest of the city. 

 
PASSED in open and regular session on this 13th day of November 2012. 

 
 
       ___________________________ 
       MAYOR MARGARET HARTO 
ATTESTED: 
 
___________________________________ 
Sharon Scott, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
___________________________________ 
Sara Springer, City Attorney 

44 of 96



-1- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

 
 

DEVELOPMENT AND PERMIT CHARGES 
I.  DEVELOPMENT FEES 

A.  Integrated Traffic Concurrency Modeling and Reports 
1.  Integrated Traffic Concurrency Modeling & Traffic 
Analysis Reports…………………………………………………………… 

See 
Schedule A CMC 12.100.090 

2.  Request for Extension of Concurrency and Traffic 
Report Approval …………………………………………………………. $392402  
3.  Request for an individually-determined 
transportation impact fee.  $408 

CMC 12.105.050(5) 

PLUS consultant costs Billed 
separately 

 

   

B.  Pre-application Conferences/Use Determinations 
1. Pre-application conference...…………………………...... $708 726 CMC 14.30.030(1) 

2.  Downtown permitted use determination……………. $659 677  CMC 18.31.085 

   

C.  Residential Land Development 
1.  Short Subdivisions    

a. 
Preliminary application review fees …………….. 

 $12,882 
11,594 CMC 17.20.010 

b.   Request for extension...…………………………………  $295 266  CMC 17.20.040 
c. 

Final short plat ………………………………………………. 
 $6,235 
5,761  CMC 17.25.030 

d. 
Alteration to recorded short plat………………….. 

 $1,766 
1,632  CMC 17.25.080 

e. Vacation of short plat ……………………………………  $824 761  CMC 17.25.090 
f. Affidavit of correction …………………………………..  $527 487  CMC 17.15.120(5) 

2.  Subdivisions    

a. 
Preliminary application review fees ……………… 

 $28,346 
26,193  CMC 17.20.010 

 PLUS per lot fee …………………………………………….  $325 300   
b. Major revision to approved preliminary 

subdivision ……………………….…………………………….. 
 $7,411 
6,848  CMC 17.20.030 

c. Request for extension …….……………………………..  $295 273  CMC 17.20.020 
d. Final subdivision   

 
(i)   Final subdivision fee …………………........... 

 $10,586 
9,782  CMC 17.25.030 

        PLUS per lot fee ………….…………………………  $90 83  
 
(ii)  Subdivision alteration …….……………......... 

 $2,353 
2,174  CMC 17.25.070(1) 

e. Vacation of plat ……………………….…….............  $824 761  CMC 17.25.090 
f. Affidavit of correction …………………..………………  $527 487  CMC 17.15.120(5) 

    

D.  Commercial Development 

EXHIBIT A

45 of 96



-2- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

1.  Commercial Site Dev. Permit (includes multifamily)   
$12,350 
12,680 CMC 18.110.010(2) 

2.  Binding Site Plan  

a. Binding site plan ….…………………………..…........ 
$12,939 
13,284 CMC 17.30.020 

b. Binding site plan, in conjunction with 
commercial site development permit …………. $1,0541082  CMC 17.30.020 

c. 
Alteration of binding site plan.……………......... 

$12,939 
13,284  CMC 17.30.040 

d.   
Vacation of binding site plan  ...……………………. 

$12,939 
13,284  CMC 17.30.050 

3.  Condominium Survey Map Review  ...………………... 
$1,054 
1,082 CMC 17.35.010 

E.  Boundary Line Adjustment 
Request for boundary line adjustment ……………...….. $884908 CMC 17.40.010 
 

F.  Environmental Review 
1.  State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Review  CMC 16.10.260(1) 

a. Environmental checklist & Threshold 
Determination……………………………….. 

 $942 1,088  
 

b. Determinattion of Significance (DS)Threshold 
determination 

$5,440 
 

 (i)  MDNS ………………………………………………........  $4,941   

 (ii) DS  ...………………………………………………….…….  $4,941   

       PLUS hourly fee to review EIS (Required 
when review exceeds 40 staff 
hours)………….…... 

$136/hr 

 

c. (ii) SEPA re-reviewSEPA Threshold 
Determination Amendment 
…………...………...………. $5,058680  

2.  Critical Area Review Fees   
a. Reviews associated with single-family 

residential building permits, shoreline 
permits, individual short subdivision, 
boundary line adjustments, right-of-way 
permits, variances, and individual grading 
permits (Level 1 Report) ………………………………. 

 $884 908 

CMC 18.65.100(1) 

b.   Reviews associated with commercial and/or 
multifamily building permits, commercial site 
development, grading permits, subdivisions, 
short subdivisions, rezones, variances, and 
conditional use permits (Level 1 Report), to 
be collected as follows: 

 

CMC 18.65.100(1) 

 
(i)  at time of application ……………………..………. 

 $2,058 
2,113   

 
(ii) at time of engineering review.………………... 

 $1,029 
1,056   

 
(iii) at commencement of monitoring.………….. 

 $1,971 
2,024   

c. If Level 2, 3, or 4 critical area report required 
………………………………………………………………………… 

Same fees as 
in (b) above CMC 18.65.100(1) 

46 of 96



-3- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

 PLUS hourly fee ……………………………………………… $132136/hr  

e. 
Critical area exceptions/reasonable use ………. 

$2,455 
2,521  CMC 18.65.070(4) 

3.   
Flood Damage Prevention Variance ………………. $1,054 

1,082 
CMC 16.15.180(1) 

   

G. Parking Demand/Trip Reduction 
   

1.  Parking Management Plan Review Fee………………. $264.00271 CMC 18.31.110(6) 

    
2.   Commute Trip Reduction  CMC 12.90.050 

a. Program review ……………………..……………………... $132136/hr  
b. Request for extension ………………….………………… $132136/hr  
c. Request for modification ……………….……………… $132136/hr  

 

H.  Engineering Review  
1.  Engineering Plan Review Fees  CMC 17.15.145(3) 

a.   Short subdivision   
 
(i) Base fee …………………..…………………………….…. 

$8,177 
8,395  

 (ii) Resubmittal or revision, each occurrence   

       Base fee …………………………………………………… $132136  

       PLUS hourly fee ………………………………………. $132136/hr  

b.   Subdivision   
 (i) Application plan review   
 
     Base fee …………………………………….....………… 

$7,800 
8,008  

      PLUS per lot fee ………………………………....... $6163  
 (ii) Resubmittal or revision, each occurrence   
       Base fee …….................................... $132136  
       PLUS hourly fee ……………...………….......... $132136/hr  

c. Commercial/multifamily  CMC 18.110.030(b) 

 
(i) Base fee ……………………………….……...………….. 

$5,294 
5,435  

 (ii) Resubmittal or revision, each occurrence   
       Base fee …………………………………………........ $132136  
       PLUS hourly fee................................ $132136/hr  

2.  Engineering Design Review   

a. Design and Construction Standards design 
deviation (Type 1) ……………………………….……….. $395406 

CMC 12.60.050 
(Standards 1.08G) 

b.  Design and Construction Standards design 
variance (Type 2) …………………………………………… $659677 

CMC 12.60.050 
(Standards 1.08) 

3.  Drainage Review Fees   
a. Drainage plan review …....................... $132136/hr CMC 13.25.040(3) 

b. Stormwater Manual design deviation (Type 
1)…………………………………………………………………….. 

$395406 CMC 13.25.050(1) 
(Standards 1.08G) 

c. Stormwater Manual design variance (Type $772793.00 CMC 13.25.050(6, 7) 

47 of 96



-4- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

2)……………………………………………………………………… 
   

I.  Clearing and Grading 
1. Clearing & Grading Permit Plan Review Fees CMC 18.60.035(1) 

a. Permit plan reviewThe Clearing and Grading fee shall be 
calculated by adding the applicable amounts from Clearing 
and Grading Fee Tables.  

 

 The plan review fee shall be calculated by adding the 
applicable amounts from Tables 1 and 2, provided the 
maximum plan review fee shall not exceed $69,286. 

 

Clearing Fee Table  
 

Clearing Area (ac) Fee + Per/1 ac 

Min Max Min Max over Min 

0 1 680.00 680.00 - 

1 10 680.00 1,112.00 48.00 

10 40 1,112.00 2,072.00 32.00 

40 120 2,072.00 3,352.00 16.00 

120 - 3,352.00 - 3.00 

 
Grading Fee Table 

Grading Volume (cy) Fee + Per/100 cy 

Min Max Min Max over Min 

0 50 408.00 408.00 - 

50 100 408.00 432.00 48.00 

100 1,000 432.00 720.00 32.00 

1,000 10,000 720.00 2,160.00 16.00 

10,000 100,000 2,160.00 4,860.00 3.00 

100,000 - 4,860.00 - 0.30 
 

   
 Table 1  

 Volume (yd³) Base PLUS, per 100 
yd³ (For Total)  

 0 - 500  $0 $38   

 501 - 3,000 $70  $52   

 3,001 - 10,000 $429  $35   

 10,001 - 20,000 $2,713  $13   

 20,001 - 40,000  $4,172  $8   

 40,001 - 80,000 $4,522  $7   

 Over 80,000 $5,327  $6   

 

 
 

 Table 2  

 Disturbed Area Base PLUS, per acre  

48 of 96



-5- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

(acres) (For Total) 
 Up to 1  Acre  $222   $1,033   

 1.1 to 10 Acres  $481   $774   

 10.1 to 40 Acres  $3,663   $457   

 40.1 to 120 Acres  $12,663   $219   

 120.1 to 360 Acres  $28,815   $87   

 360.1 Acres and more  $31,269   $48   
 

b.   Plan revision fee    
 (i)  Base fee, each occurrence …………..... $471403  
       PLUS hourly fee.....………..……..…….. $132136/hr  
 (ii) SEPA re-review …………...………...………. $5,058  

2.  Grading Permit Fee Reductions CMC 18.60.035(3) 
a. Grading permit fee reduction for projects 

completed within one year …………………… 40% 
 

b. Grading permit fee reduction for projects 
reviewed in conjunction with building 
permits, subdivisions, or short subdivisions 
or planned unit developments  
……………………… 5030% 

 

3.  Tree Removal and Clearing Fees  

a. Minor tree removal ……………………………...… $262269 CMC 18.45.060(6) 
b. Major tree clearing …………………………....... $787808 CMC 18.45.060(6) 

 

J. Construction Inspection 
1. Construction and Maintenance Inspection Fee 
Table 

 CMC 17.15.145(4) 

    
 

Bond Quantity Worksheet Fee + Per/1,000 

Min Max Min Max over BQW Min 

$0 $100,000 $5,168.00 $9,248.00 $40.80 

$100,000 $500,000 $9,248.00 $22,848.00 $34.00 

$500,000 $1,000,000 $22,848.00 $36,448.00 $27.20 

$1,000,000 + $36,448.00 - $20.40 

 Bond Quantities 
Worksheet Amount Fee PLUS,  per each 

$1,000 assured 
 

 $0 - $30,000 $41 $213  

 $30,001 - $120,000 $5,410 $90  

 More than $120,001 $11,762 $39  
 

2.   Annual Inspections …………………………….…………..... $132/hr CMC 17.15.145(4) 

3.   Supplemental Inspection, base fee ………………….. $341 CMC 17.15.145(4) 

      PLUS hourly fee...…………………………….……………….. $132/hr  

4.  Landscape Installation Inspection & Bond Release 
………............. 

$341408 CMC 18.40.150(4) 

49 of 96



-6- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

5.  Landscape Maintenance Bond Release Inspection..... $341 CMC 18.40.150(4) 

6.  Request for Extension of Performance Guarantee   $263270 CMC 18.40.150(4) 

7.  Inspection outside of business hours -        
Weekdays, Billed at 2 hour minimum $132136/hr 

 

8.  Inspection on weekends/holidays -– Billed at 4 hour 
minimum $132136/hr 

 

 
K.   Re-inspections and Missed Appointments 
            (Construction, Planning, Engineering, Fire) 
Re-inspection fees will be assessed at $132 136 per occurrence when an inspection has 
been requested or is required and (1) the previous inspection correction items are not 
complete, and/or (2) access to the site is not provided, and/or (3) approved plans are not 
on-site. 
 

L.  Maintenance Bond Fees  
     

 Bond/Assurance 
Amount Fee PLUS, per each 

$1,000 assured 
 

 $0 - $30,000 $707 $25  
 $30,001 - $120,000 $1,178 $12  
 More than $120,001 $1,766 $8  
    

    

ML.  Latecomers’ Agreements 

1.  Application Fee   CMC 13.45.020(1) 

a. Latecomer’s costs $20,000 or less ….……... $546561  

b. Latecomer’s costs $20,001 - $100,000 ...… $1,093 
1,122 

 

c. Latecomer’s costs more than $100,000. $2,186 
2,244 

 

2.  Review by City Engineer; 4-hour deposit required…. $132136/hr CMC 13.45.020(2)  

3.  Processing Fee ……………………………………………….…… $132136 CMC 13.45.050(6) 

4.  Segregation Processing Fee …………………………..….. $132136 CMC 13.45.060(1) 
 

NM.  Shoreline Management Fees 
1.  Substantial Development Permit CMC 16.05.050 

     

a.   Total Cost of Proposed 
Development 

Fee   

 $5,001 - 10,000 $1,609 
1,652 

  

 $10,001 - 100,000 $3,217 
3,303 

  

 $100,001 - 500,000 $8,039 
8,254 

  

 $500,001 - 1,000,000 $12,056 
12,378 

  

50 of 96



-7- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

 More than $1,000,000 $16,072 
16,501 

  

 

b. Single-family Joint-Use Dock ……........... $3,529 
3,623 

 

2.  Shoreline Conditional Use Permit …………………….. $12,350 
12,680 

 

3.  Shoreline Variance    
 Up to $10,000 project value ……………...…. $3,647 

3,744 
 

 Over $10,000 project value ………………..... $9,646 
9,904 

 

4.  Shoreline Environment Redefinition    
 Base fee …………………………………………….….. $18,133 

18,617 
 

 PLUS per shoreline lineal foot...…......... $3738  
 Maximum charge ……………………………………. $67,992 

69,807 
 

5.  Shoreline Exemption ………………………................ $414425  
6. Supplemental Fees    

a.   Request for extension, calculated as % of 
original permit …………………………………..... 20% 

 

b. Revision, as % of original permit ………….. 20%  
c. Surcharge when public hearing required, 

as % of original permit ……………………….... 12% 
 

 Minimum charge …………………………………….. $3,764 
3,864 

 

d.   Compliance investigation not to exceed 
cost of permit (including travel time) ……. $132136/hr 

 

 

ON.  Administrative  Fees 
1.   Administrative fee for school impact fees, per 

residential unit …………………………………………………. $8068 
CMC 18.120.030(1) 

2.   Administrative fee for development permits 
subject to transportation impact fees, per 
lot........................................................ $8068 

CMC 12.105.070(3) 

3.   Administrative fee for development permits 
subject to individually-determined 
transportation impact fees, per development  … $403 

CMC 12.105.050(5) 

 

PO.  Consultant Pass-Through Fees 
In the review of a land-use permit application, including but not limited to 
environmental (SEPA) review, the City may determine that such review requires 
the retention of professional consultant services.  In addition to the above 
development fees that an applicant is required to submit, the applicant shall also 
be responsible for reimbursing the City for the cost of professional consultant 
services if the City determines that such services are necessary to complete its 
review of the application submittal.  The City may also require the applicant to 
deposit an amount with the City which is estimated, at the discretion of the 
Community Development Director, to be sufficient to cover anticipated costs of 
retaining professional consultant services and ensure reimbursement to the City 
for such costs.  (CMC 14.30.040(6)) 
 

51 of 96



-8- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

1.   Consultant costs ……………………………………….……….. Actual costs  

2.   Administrative fee ……………………………………………… 10% of actual consultant costs 

 
(SCHEDULE A) 
  

52 of 96



-9- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

 
 

ZONING AND LAND USE FEES 
II.  ZONING AND LAND USE FEES 

A. Zoning Fees  

1.   Annexation Petitions and Election Requests2  

 Base Fee ………………………………………….…… $12,812 
13,154  

 PLUS per acre …………………………………….. $7779  

2.   Comprehensive Plan Amendment …………………. $3,8253,927 CMC 14.25.020(2) 

 (includes $500 non-refundable docketing fee)   

 PLUS consultant costs if accepted by 
Planning Commission ………………….……... 

Billed 
separately  

3.  Development Regulation Amendment ...………… $3,2783,366 

 (includes $500 non-refundable docketing fee)   

 PLUS consultant costs if accepted by 
Planning Commission ……….………………... 

Billed 
separately  

4.   Land Use Written Determination/Certification¹ 
 Type 1 decision letter ……………..…………. $414425 Multiple cites 

1. Some written determinations may require additional consultant pass-through costs as authorized by the 
Covington Municipal Code. 

2. Fee does not include any costs associated with development of Sub-Area Plans and development 
regulations. 

B. Conditional Use Permits 

1.   Conditional Use Permit (CUP)    CMC 18.125.020 

 a. CUP (stand alone permit) ………………………….. $10,125 
10,395  

 b. CUP w/ Commercial Site Development ……. $2,8812,958  

 c. Amendment to CUP ………………………………….. $3,5403,635  

    

C. Temporary Use/Re Use of a facility 
1.   Temporary Use Permit ……………………………….…. $263270 CMC 18.85.100 

2.  Re-use of Closed Public School Facilities ……… $1,7611,808 CMC 18.85.220 

    

D.   Zoning Variance/Downtown Design Departure/Appeals 
1. Zoning Variance (Type 3)…………………………………. $8,8816,800 CMC 18.125.030 

2. Design Departure from the City of Covington 
Design Guidelines and Standards…………………….. $263270 CMC 18.31.050 

3.   Appeals to Hearing Examiner ………………………… $619636 CMC 14.35.110(1) 

    

  

53 of 96



-10- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

E. Sign Permits   
1. Sign Permits  CMC 18.55.050(1) 

 a. Freestanding sign, each …………………………….. $590606  

 b. Wall-mounted signs (up to 3) ……………………. $590606  

      Additional per sign over 3 signs ………………… $132136  

 c. Temporary sign ………………………………………….. $132136  

2..   Sign Variance …………….....……………………........ $8,8816,800 CMC 18.55.090 

    

F. Wireless Communications Facilities   
1. Wireless Communications Facilities (WCF)  CMC 18.70 

 a.  WCF – Type 1………………………………………………. $396407  

 b.  WCF – Type 2 Administrative …………………….. $1,4521,491  

 c.  WCF – Type 3- New WCF Tower or Height 
Waiver………………………………………………………………. $1,9041,955  

    

G. Multifamily Tax Exemption Fees 

1. Multifamily property tax exemption application $760780 CMC 3.80 

2. Amendment of approved contract…………………… $528542  

3. Extension time for the conditional tax exempt 
certificate……………………………………………………….. $264271  

4. Application for final certificate of tax 
exemption 1…………………………………………………….. $760780  

1.  If approved a $150 processing fee for filing with King County Department of Records and Elections will be 
required. 
 

H. Other services ……………………………………… $132136/h
r  

 
  

54 of 96



-11- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

III.  RIGHT-OF-WAY FEES 
A.  Right-of-Way Use Permit1  CMC 12.35.040 

 Up to 300 lineal feet …………………..………. $421432  

 Over 300 lineal feet ………………………..….. $664682  

 PLUS $2.00 per foot over 300 lineal feet  

B.  Right-of-Way Use Permit Extension   CMC 12.35.050(4) 

 Up to 300 lineal feet ……………………………. $421432  

 Over 300 lineal feet …………………………….. $664682  

 PLUS $2.00 per foot over 300 lineal feet  

C.  Right-of-Way Use – Non-Construction ……………… 
       (e.g. parade, block party, oversize load, etc.) $132136 CMC 12.35.040 

D.  Right-of-Way Construction Permit (Franchised Utility)  CMC 12.65.040(1) 

 Up to 300 lineal feet ………………………..…. $421432  

 Over 300 lineal feet …………………………….. $664682  

 PLUS $2.00 per foot over 300 lineal feet  

E.  Right-of-Way Placement Permit (Non-franchised Utility)   CMC 12.67.050(5) 

 Up to 300 lineal feet ……………..……………. $421432  

 Over 300 lineal feet …………………..……….. $664682  

 PLUS $2.00 per foot over 300 lineal feet  

F.  Right-of-Way Use Permit – Aerial Work   

 Base fee (non-construction)………………….. $132136  

 Per pole fee………………………………………….. $132136  

G.  ROW Use Permit – Aerial & Pole Replacement   

 Base fee (construction)…………………………. $421432  

 Per pole fee…………………………………………… $263270  

H.  Failure to Call In Job Start………………………………… $132136  
I.  Petition for Vacation of Right-of-Way …………... $947972 CMC 12.55.070 
      PLUS pass-through consultant costs.………………. Billed separately  
J.  Limited Special Permit to Exceed Bridge Load Limit. $132136/hr CMC 12.20.020 

1 The fee is applicable to a request for the relocation of an existing driveway.  

  

55 of 96



-12- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

IV.  BUILDING FEES 
A.  Building Code Fees CMC 15.05.060 

1.  Building Permit Fee Table  
 Project Value Fee  
 $1 - $500 $3035  
 $500 - $2,000 $30 35 for first $500, plus $7 per each addt’l $100 or 

fraction thereof up to and including $2,000 
 

 $2,001 - $25,000 $101 140 for first $2,000, plus $20 17 per each addt’l 
$1,000 or fraction thereof up to and including $25,000 

 

 $25,001 - $50,000 $506 531 for first $25,000, plus $15 14 per each addt’l 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $50,000 

 

 $50,001 - $100,000 $858 881 for first $50,000, plus $13 per each addt’l 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000 

 

 $100,001 - 
$500,000 

$1,4481531 for first $100,000, plus $14 13per each addt’l 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $500,000 

 

 $500,001 - 
$1,000,000 

$6,6226,731 for first $500,000, plus $10 9 per each addt’l 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, up to and including $1,000,000 

 

 More than 
$1,000,001 

$10,73911,231 for first $1,000,000, plus $9 per each 
addt’l $1,000 or fraction thereof 

 

 

2. Other Inspections and Fees  
a. Inspections outside of normal business hours  

 Base fee …………………………………………………... $263270  
 PLUS hourly rate beyond two hours ….……… $132136/hr  

b. Reinspection fees assessed per IBC 305.8 …. $132136/hr  
c.  Other inspections ………………………...………….. $132136/hr  
d. Additional plan review ………………….………….. $132136/hr  
e. Plan review and/or inspection by outside 

consultants ……………………………………….………. Actual costs 
  

3.  Building Permit Plan Review (due at time of 
application) ……………………………………………………… 65% of building permit fee 

  

4.  Misc. Single-Family Residential Building Permit Fees  
a. Re-roofs ………………………………………….………... $192197  
b. Manufactured home placement, per unit  … $192197  
c. Fences over 6 feet tall ……………………………… Valuation-based  
d. Demolition, per structure ……………………….. $254261  
e. Permit Extension Request…………………………. $132136  

5.  Misc. Commercial Building Permit Fees  
a. Permit Extension Request…………………………. $132136  
b. Temporary Certificate of Occupancy……….. $264271  

  

56 of 96



-13- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

B.  Mechanical Permit Fees CMC 15.05.060 

1.  Permit Issuance ……………….......................... $3738  
2.  Supplemental Permit Issuance ……………………….. $15  
    

3. Mechanical Unit Fee Schedule  
 a. Furnace $2223  
 b. Furnace over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kw) $2526  
 c. Floor furnace $2223  
 d. Unit heater $2223  
 e. Appliance vent $12  
 f. Boiler or compressor up to 3 hp, or 

absorption system up to 100,000 Btu/h 
$2122  

 g. Boiler or compressor over 3 up to 15 hp, or 
absorption system 100,001-500,000 Btu/h 

$3536  

 h. Boiler or compressor over 15 up to 30 hp, or 
absorption system 500,001-1,000,000 Btu/h 

$5051  

 i. Boiler or compressor over 30 up to 50 hp, or 
absorption system 1,000,001-1,750,000 Btu/h 

$7072  

 j. Boiler or compressor over 50 hp, or 
absorption system over 1,750,000 Btu/h 

$116119  

 k. Air-handling unit up to 10,000 cfm $15  
 l. Air-handling unit over 10,000 cfm $2526  
 m. Evaporative cooler $15  
 n. Ventilation fan $12  
 o. Mechanical hood $15  
 p. Domestic-type incinerator $2526  
 q. Commercial or industrial-type incinerator $2122  

 r. Miscellaneous appliance $15  
 s. Gas piping system, 1-5 outlets $10  
 t. Additional outlet exceeding 5, each $6  
 u. Hazardous process piping system (HPP),    

1-4 outlets 
$10  

 v. Hazardous process piping system (HPP),    
5 or more outlets, each 

$6  

 w. Nonhazardous process piping system 
(NPP), 1-4 outlets 

$7  

 x. Nonhazardous process piping system 
(HPP), 5 or more outlets, each 

$0.691  

  

4.  Commercial Mechanical Permit Plan Review...… 65% of mechanical permit fee 
      
  

57 of 96



-14- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

C.  Plumbing Permit Fees CMC 15.05.060 

1.  Permit Issuance ……………………………………..…...…. $3738  
2.  Supplemental Permit Issuance ……….…………...… $15  
3. Plumbing Unit Fee Schedule 

 a. One trap or a set of fixtures on one trap $12  

 b. Building sewer and each trailer park sewer $2223  

 c. Rainwater systems, per drain (inside building) $12  

 d. Cesspool (where permitted) $3334  

 e. Private sewage disposal system $5253  

 f. Water heater and/or vent $12  

 g. Gas-piping system, 1-5 outlets $10  

 h. Additional outlet exceeding 5, each $6  
 i. Industrial waste pretreatment interceptor 

including its trap and vent, except 
kitchen-type grease interceptors 
functioning as fixture trap 

$12  

 j. Installation or alteration of drainage or 
vent piping and/or water treating 
equipment, each 

$12  

 k. Repair or alteration of drainage or vent 
piping, each fixture 

$12  

 l. Lawn sprinkler system on any one meter 
including backflow protection devices 

$12  

 m. Atmospheric-type vacuum breakers, 1-5 $10  

 n. Additional breakers exceeding 5, each $6  
 o. Backflow device other than atmospheric-

type vacuum breakers, 2-inch or smaller 
$12  

 p. Backflow device other than atmospheric-
type vacuum breakers, over 2 inches 

$2223  

 q. Graywater system $5253  
 r. Initial installation and testing for 

reclaimed water system* 
$3940  

 s. Annual cross-connection testing of  reclaimed 
water system (excluding initial test)* 

$3940  

 t. Medical gas piping system serving 1-5 
inlets/outlets for a specific gas 

$6567  

 u. Additional medical gas inlets/outlets, each $10  

       *Additional hourly rate may apply to complex systems  
   

4.  Commercial Plumbing Permit Plan Review ……… 65% of total plumbing permit 
fee 

  

58 of 96



-15- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

V.  FIRE FEES 
A.  Fire Permit Fee Table CMC 15.20.010 

  
 Project Value Fee  
 $1 - $500 $198  
 $501 - $2,000 $198 for first $501, plus $7 per each addt’l $100 or 

fraction thereof up to and including $2,000 
 

 $2,001 - $25,000 $303 for first $2,001, plus $3 per each addt’l $1,000 or 
fraction thereof up to and including $25,000 

 

 $25,001 - $50,000 $372 for first $25,001, plus $8 per each addt’l $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $50,000 

 

 $50,001 - $100,000 $572 for first $50,001, plus $6 per each addt’l $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $100,000 

 

 $100,001 - $500,000 $872 for first $100,000, plus $4per each addt’l $1,000 or 
fraction thereof, up to and including $500,000 

 

 $500,001 - up $1032 for first $500,000, plus $4 per each addt’l $1,000 or 
fraction thereof 

 

 

B.  Fire Code Construction Permit CMC 15.20.010 
1.  Plan Review Fee (due at application) ……………. 65% of fire permit fee 
2.  Permit Fee (due at issuance)…………………………… See fire permit fee table 
3.  Commercial Tanks 
      a.  1st tank ………………………………………………………. $264271 
      b.  Additional tanks ………………………………………… $264271 
4.  Residential Tanks  

a. 1st tank ………………………………………………………… $264271 
b. Additional tanks ………………………………………….. $132136 

5.  Residential tank removal/fill…………………………….. $198203 
6.  Commercial tank removal/fill ………………………….. $264271 
7.  Residential Emergency Generator ...…………………  $264271 
8.  Commercial Emergency Generator ………………….. $528542 
9.  Hazardous Materials …………………………………………. $132 136/hr 
10.  Permit extensions or approvals  

a. Single-family residential …………..…………... $158162  
b. Final and correction inspections ……………. $254261  
c.  Full fire inspection …………………………………… 20% of original permit fee  

 

C.  Building and Land Use Plan Review CMC 15.20.010 

1.  Commercial Building Permit……………………..…….. 
       0-10,000 sq. ft. ………………………………………………. 
       10,001 – 50,000 sq. ft. ……………………………………. 
       50,001 sq. ft. and up………………………………………. 
2.  Multi-Family Building Permit ……………………………. 

 
$528542 
$14521,491 
$19802,033 
5% of building permit fee 

3.  Single-family Permit................................. 5% of building permit fee 
4.  Subdivisions (at preliminary plat review) ………… $659677  
5.  Short subdivisions (at preliminary plat   

59 of 96



-16- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

review)...................................................... $593609 
6.  Boundary line adjustments (case by 
case)………………………………………………………………………… 

 
$132136 

 

7.  Commercial Site Development………………………….. 
        0-10,000 sq. ft.  …………………………………………….. 
        10,001 – 50,000 sq. ft. ………………………………….. 
        50,001 sq. ft. and up………………………………………. 
8.  Other land applications …………………………………... 
 

 
$528542 
$10561,084 
$13201,355 
$198203 
 

 

D.  Annual Fire Code Enforcement Inspection   CMC 15.20.010 
1.  Fire Code Permitted Business…………………….……… $132136/hr  
2.  General Business ……………………………………….……… $132136/hr  
 
 

 
E.  Fireworks        CMC 15.20.250 
1.  Firework stands (rate set by state law) ………… $100  
2.  Firework displays (rate set by state law) ……… $100  

F.  Other      CMC 15.20.010 
1.  Inspections outside of normal business hours  

 Base fee ……………………………………………………. $264271  
 PLUS hourly rate beyond two hours ….……… $132136/hr  

2.  Re-inspection …………………………………………………… $132136/hr  
3.  Other inspections……………………………………………… $132136/hr  
4.  Additional plan review…………………………………….. $132136/hr  
5.  Request for a code modification……..……………….. $132136/hr  
6.  Request for alternative material and method…. $132136/hr  
7.  Plan review and/or inspection by outside      
consultants ………………………………………………………….… Actual costs 

 

   
 
 

 
  

60 of 96



-17- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

 

V.  FIRE CODE FEES 
A.  Fire Flow & Fire Access Review – International Fire Code   CMC 15.05.060 
1.  Commercial site development   

 Buildings 5,000+ sq. ft. ……………………………… $889  

 Buildings less than 5,000 sq. ft …………………. $494  

2.  Large commercial buildings 5,000 + sq. ft. 
(building permit review)…………………………………………. 

$1,350  

3.  Commercial building less than 5,000 sq. ft. 
(building permit review)…………………………………………. 

$527  

4.  Multifamily building (building permit review)…. $1,350  
5.  Commercial tenant improvements …………………… $527  
6.  Single-family residential (new building 
permit)…………………………………………………………………….. 

$296  

7.  Subdivisions (at preliminary plat review) ………… $659  
8.  Short subdivisions (at preliminary plat 
review)...................................................... 

$593  

9.  Boundary line adjustments (case by 
case)………………………………………………………………………… 

$132  

10.  Other applications ………………………………………... $198  
 

B.  Fire System and Tank Reviews                                       CMC 15.05.060 
    

   1.   Fire alarm systems  

 a. 1-4 zones $204  

 b. Each additional zone $40  

 c. Each addressable panel $719  

  PLUS for each device $8  

 2.   Fire extinguishing systems $403  

            PLUS for each nozzle $24  

 3.   Automatic sprinkler systems  

 a. Commercial, each riser $386  

  PLUS for each head/plug $8  

 b. Multifamily 13R, each riser $311  

  PLUS for each head/plug $7  

 c. Single-family 13D system $319  

 4.   Standpipe systems  

 a. Class I $403  

 b. Class II $403  

 c. Class III $1,108  

 d. Each outlet, Class I or II $78  
  

61 of 96



-18- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

 e. Fire pump $359  

 5.   Flammable or combustible liquids storage tanks  

 a. Underground, first tank $204  

  PLUS each additional tank $111  

 b. Above ground, each tank $204  

 6.   Hazardous materials storage tanks  

 a. Less than 500 gallons, each $274  

 b. 501 - 1,199 gallons, each $553  

 c. 1,200 gallons or more $789  

 7.   Liquefied petroleum tanks  

 a. Less than 500 gallons, each $204  

 b. 501 - 9,999 gallons, each $403  

 c. 10,000 gallons or more $794  

 8.   Gaseous oxygen systems  

 a. Less than 6,000 ft³ $126  

 b. 6,001 - 11,9999 ft³ $274  

 c. 12,000 ft³ or more $396  
 9.   Nitrous oxide systems $216  
            PLUS each outlet $20  
 10.   Medical gas systems  
 a.  Gaseous systems $430  
  PLUS each outlet $20  
 b. Liquefied systems $923  
  PLUS each outlet $20  
 11.   Hazardous material recycling systems  

 a. 110 gallons or less per day 
capacity 

$274  

 b. Over 110 gallons per day 
capacity 

$788  

 12.  Vapor recovery systems (per tank)  

 a. Phase I – tank truck and tank $220  

 b. Phase II – vehicle fueled and 
tank 

$275  

 13.   Cryogenic tank, each $220  

 14.   Flammable liquid devices  

 a. Spray booths (updraft), each $220  

 b. Dip tanks, each $200  

 c. Spray booths (downdraft), each $367  

 d. Flow coaters, each $417  

 e. Mixing/handling room $544  

62 of 96



-19- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

 
 15.   Fiberglass work systems  

 a. Spray or chopper booth $367  

 b. Lay-up areas $428  

 16.   Organic peroxide storage facility $428  

 17.   Explosives storage magazines  

 a. Class I $428  

 b. Class II $274  

 18.   Compressed natural gas systems, 
each 

$417  

 19.   Liquefied natural gas systems $791  

 20.   High-piled storage racks $417  

 21.   Smoke removal systems $428  

 22.   High rise emergency evacuation plans $428  

 23.   Commercial candle-holding devices $274  

 24.   Computer room $428  
 25.   Floor or layout plans required by the 

Fire Code for public assembly, special 
sales, outdoor storage of flammable 
liquids in drums, or indoor storage of 
combustibles 

$417  

 26.   Fire clearance when requested of the Fire Marshal, 
including but not limited to the following: 

 

 a. State funding of school projects $274  
 b. State or federal school, hospital, 

nursing home, rehabilitative 
facilities, or custodial facilities 
accreditation 

$274  

 c. State licensing of mini-day care, 
day care, foster home, boarding 
home 

$274  

 d. State liquor license $274  

 e. State gambling license $274  

 f. Special out-of-occupancy uses $274  

 g. House moving permit $274  
 h. Fire clearance for Covington 

business licenses 
$274  

 27.   Approval of carpet samples or 
decorative materials 

$274  

 28.   Special inspections for occupancy 
determinations or changes of use 
requirements 

$274  

 29.   Requested preliminary inspections $274  
 30.   Each retest or re-inspection of a fire 

protection or hazardous materials 
$274  

  

63 of 96



-20- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

 31.   Witnessing tests of used underground 
flammable liquids storage tanks 
before installation 

$274  

 32.   Investigating and processing leaking 
underground storage tanks or 
hazardous materials spills and the 
subsequent containment and 
recovery of lost product 

$274  

 33.   Underground piping to flammable or 
combustible liquid storage tanks 

$274  

 34.   Installation, removal or abandonment, or any 
combination thereof, of flammable or combustible 
liquid storage tanks 

 

 a. First commercial tank $274  
 b. Each additional commercial tank $145  
 c. Contractor’s permit for removal 

or abandonment of residential 
underground fuel tanks 

$192  

 35.   Witnessing tests of underground 
flammable or combustible liquid 
storage tanks for tank tightness 

$274  

 36.   Conducting fire flow tests or analysis $968  

 37.   Fuel tanks for oil burning equipment  

 a. Commercial $204  

 b. Residential $100  

 38.   Monitoring transmitters $275  

            PLUS each device $8  
 39.   Sprinkler system supply mains (public 

main to sprinkler riser), each 
$274  

 40.   Emergency or standby power systems $274  
 41.   Plan review of construction fire 

safety plans 
$274  

 42.   Confidence testing of fire protection 
systems 

$274  

 43.   High rise fire system review $274  

 44.   Fire protection plan review  
 a. Review of water main extension, 

replacement, or both 
$291  

  PLUS per hydrant $83  
 b. Review of hazardous material 

management plan 
$568  

 
  

64 of 96



-21- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

C.  Fire System and Fire Tank Inspections/Conformance      CMC 15.05.060 
1.  Inspection of residential projects …………………... $165  
     PLUS per head/device ……………………………..…….. $7  
2.  Inspection of commercial projects …………………. $178  
     PLUS per head/device ………………………………….... $8  
3.  Inspection of water main extension or replacement. $148  
4.  Inspection of combustible liquid storage tanks.. $165  
 

D.  Hazardous Materials and Public Assembly Inspection       CMC 15.05.060 
Code inspections, mitigations, and code enforcement fees shall be charged at the 
Department’s current hourly rate, with the exception of the following: 
1.  Fireworks stands (rate set by state law) ………… $100  
2.  Fireworks displays (rate set by state law) ……… $100  
3.  Liquefied petroleum gas serving single-family 

residences ………………….…………………………………... No charge 
 

4.  Parade floats ………………………………….………………… No charge  
5.  Use of candles for ceremonial purposes by 

churches or nonprofit groups ……………………..…… No charge 
 

 

E.  Extensions of permits or approvals                                 CMC 15.05.060 
Fire system permits   

a. Single-family residential …………..…………... $158  
b. Final and correction inspections ……………... $254  
c.  Full fire inspection …………………………….. 20% of original permit fee 

 

F.  Fire Code Enforcement Inspection (Annual Fire Inspections) CMC 15.05.060 
Fire code enforcement inspections identified in the program policy shall be 
charged to the applicant or owner at hourly rate of $132. 

 
  

65 of 96



-22- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

VI.  TECHNOLOGY MANAGEMENT FEE 
A $3940.00 technology surcharge is assessed for each of the following 
transactions: Building permit, plumbing permit, mechanical permit, fire permit, sign 
permit, demolition permit, right-of-way use permit, etc. The fee is collected at the time 
of issuance for the building specific permits and right-of-way use permits. A technology 
surcharge will be assessed for development projects at, and each step in the land-use 
actionprocess (Concurrency Review, Preliminary, Engineering, Notice to Proceed and 
Final approvals). Individual impact fees not paid with an associated building permit will 
be required to pay a separate technology surcharge fee at the time of payment.  , 
impact fee assessment, and concurrency analysis (including supplemental applications). 
 
  

66 of 96



-23- 
Fee Resolution Updated May 20122013 

Resolution 12-10 

ADMINISTRATIVE CHARGES 
I.  BUSINESS LICENSES 

A.  Business license fee, (New) $60 
B.  Business license fee for home occupations or home industry 
(New) 

$60 

C.  Business license renewal fee $60 
C.  Peddler’s permit fee $99 
     PLUS technology surcharge $3940 
D.  Special event license (3-day license) $141 
     PLUS technology surcharge $3940 
 

II.  CITY CLERK’S OFFICE 
A.  Agenda-only subscription (City Council and all commissions) No charge 
B.  Copies of audio tapes of meetings, per tape Actual cost 
C.  Verbatim transcripts, requires $400 deposit when ordered Actual cost 
D.  Copy – CD rom Actual cost 
E.  Paper copies on copier (no charge first 5 pages), per page $0.15 
 

III.  FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
A.  Financial Documents – copies available at City Hall for viewing  
1. Final Budget  Actual cost 
2.  Preliminary Budget No charge 
3. Financial Statement Actual cost 

B.  Returned item fee (i.e. NSF, chargeback, etc.) Actual cost 
 

IV.  MISCELLANEOUS FEES 
A.  Maps larger than 11” x 17” Actual cost 
B.  Community Room  
1. Reservation fees – Weekdays during normal City business 

hours (8 am to 5 pm) 
$2728/hour 

2. Reservation fees – Weekends, holidays, times other than normal 
City hours 

$6264/hour 

3. Facility monitor hourly rate (set by Executive Dept) $12/hour 
4. Kitchen use fee (set by Executive Dept) $30  
5. Refundable damage/cleaning deposit $257250 
6. Processing fee for refunds for cancellations (set by Executive 

Dept) 
$10/per 
transaction 

C.  Promotional Items  
1. City of Covington hats, mugs, etc. Actual cost 
2. Covington historical books Actual cost 

D.  Special Event Permit (on City property) $254261 
 

67 of 96



David Evans and Associates, Inc.C:\Documents and Settings\slyons\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\9PKU6I8H\Appendix B - Trip Rate Table-ITE 9th Edition- 12_1026.xlsx

Appendix B.  Traffic Impact Rate Table 0.091 406$            

This table uses ITE (3) driveway trip rates, with adjustments, to derive the net new impact per unit of development, in vehicle-miles-traveled (VMT).  See ITE for details of land use categories. (9)

ITE ITE ITE DISCOUNT ITE NET DAILY FEE PER
LAND USE LAND USE Avg PASS-BY Pk/Daily VMT IMPACT LAND USE

CODE UNIT (11) SIZE (9) PM DAILY TRIPS (4) K-Factor RATE / UNIT (5) UNIT

Single-Family (Detached) Housing 210 Dwelling 214 1.00 9.52 0% 10.5% 9.52 4,461$         

Duplex (Detached) Housing use 210 Dwelling same 1.00 9.52 0% 10.5% 9.52 4,461$         

Multifamily, 3+ Bedrooms use 231 Dwelling 234 0.78 7.41 0% 10.5% 7.41 3,479$         

Multifamily, under 3 Bedrooms
 blend 220, 
221, 230 Dwelling 250 0.60 6.00 0% 10.0% 6.00 2,676$         

Mobile Home Park 240 Dwelling 168 0.59 4.99 0% 11.8% 4.99 2,632$         
Self-contained Retirement Community 
(7) 251 Dwelling 862 0.27 3.68 0% 7.3% 3.68 1,204$         

Senior Adult Housing-Attached 252 Dwelling 147 0.25 3.44 0% 7.3% 3.44 1,115$         
Congregate Care Facility, Nursing 
Home, Elderly Housing (Attached)

     please see Non-Retail, assisted living facilities

Employment Centers

Office Building  (Single  Building)
blend 710, 
714, 715 1000 sq. ft. 150-300 1.50 11.42 0% 13.1% 11.42 6,691$         

Office Park (Multiple Buildings) 750 1000 sq. ft. 370 1.48 11.42 0% 13.0% 11.42 6,602$         

Business Park  (Multiple Buildings) 770 1000 sq. ft. 379 1.26 12.44 0% 10.1% 12.44 5,621$         

Research & Development Center 760 1000 sq. ft. 306 1.07 8.11 0% 13.2% 8.11 4,773$         %T(10)

General Light Industrial 110 1000 sq. ft. 357 0.97 6.97 0% 13.9% 6.97 4,327$         %T(10)

Industrial Park 130 1000 sq. ft. 447 0.85 6.83 0% 12.4% 6.83 3,792$         %T(10)

Manufacturing 140 1000 sq. ft. 325 0.73 3.82 0% 19.1% 3.82 3,256$         %T(10)

General Heavy Industrial 120 1000 sq. ft. 1544 0.68 1.50 0% 45.3% 1.50 3,033$         %T(10)

Trucking and Storage Facilities

1 Warehousing (Industrial) 150 1000 sq. ft. 354 0.32 3.56 0% 9.0% 3.56 1,427$         %T(10)

2 Mini-Warehouse (Self-Service 
Storage) 151 1000 sq. ft. 58 0.26 2.50 0% 10.4% 2.50 1,160$         

3
High-Cube Warehouse/Distribution 
Center 152 1000 sq. ft. 302 0.12 1.68 0% 7.1% 1.68 535$            %T(10)

4 Intermodal Truck Terminal 30 Acres 12 6.55 81.90 0% 8.0% 81.90 29,218$       %T(10)

Institutions

Church, with Weekday Programs 560 1000 sq. ft. 17 2.00 30.00 20% 6.7% 24.00 7,137$         

High School 530 1000 sq. ft. 225 0.97 12.89 10% 7.5% 11.60 3,894$         

Elementary and Junior High School 520 1000 sq. ft. 55 0.20 14.49 20% 1.4% 11.59 714$            

Church, No Weekday Programs 560 1000 sq. ft. 17 0.40 6.00 0% 6.7% 6.00 1,784$         

Assisted Living  Facilities

Nursing Home 620 Beds 99 0.22 2.74 10% 8.0% 2.47 883$            
Congregate Care Facility, Elderly 
Housing (Attached) 253 Living unit 164 0.17 2.02 10% 8.4% 1.82 682$            

Notes:
(1) V.S.P. (Vehicle Servicing Position) = space provided for one vehicle to be fueled or washed; not necessarily "pumps" or "hoses"
(2) Use total rooms for hotel/motel; 15% vacancy factor is incorporated in gross trip rate.  Excludes facilities with major restaurants and meeting places.
(3) ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th edition.  Some ITE rates are smoothed and averaged to eliminate statistically insignificant differences.
(4) Pass-by Reduction eliminates trips diverted from the stream of traffic "passing by" a retail site,  which add no vehicle-miles of impact on the road system.
(5) Net New VMT Impact Trip Rate = ITE Gross Trip Rate  *  ( 1 - % Pass-by) .  
(6)  For shopping centers over 65,000 sq. ft., see ITE for logarithmic trip rate formula.
(7)  A retirement community is "self-contained" only if it provides a full range of facilities on-site for medical care, recreation, shopping, dining, etc. 
       For "assisted living" retirement facilities serving the non-driving elderly with caregivers employed on-site, use Congregate Care Centers under NON-RETAIL.
(8)  Average size of developments comprising the ITE database.  May be useful to distinguish between otherwise similar-sounding classes. 
(9) Trip rate for any land use not covered by this table shall be determined by the Director of Public Works.
(10) This land use generates heavy truck travel.  Truck surcharge must be calculated.
(11) Units expressed as 1000 sq. ft. refer to habitable gross building area, not land area.  Units expressed as "acres" refer to land area.

PM Avg K-factor  =

NON-RETAIL 
Signature elements:  places where most traffic is generated by employees, rather than 
customers, patrons or residents.  Includes some public facilities and some assisted-living 
types of residential facilities.  Peak hour main direction varies.

Avg Daily Fee/Trip  =

ITE
LAND USE

NAME

RESIDENTIAL Signature elements:  places where people live with active lifestyles.  Afternoon peak hour 
traffic is mainly inbound.  

ITE GROSS TRIP 
RATE / UNIT (3)

EXHIBIT B

68 of 96



David Evans and Associates, Inc.C:\Documents and Settings\slyons\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\9PKU6I8H\Appendix B - Trip Rate Table-ITE 9th Edition- 12_1026.xlsx

Appendix B.  Traffic Impact Rate Table 0.091 406$            

This table uses ITE (3) driveway trip rates, with adjustments, to derive the net new impact per unit of development, in vehicle-miles-traveled (VMT).  See ITE for details of land use categories. (9)

ITE ITE ITE DISCOUNT ITE NET DAILY FEE PER
LAND USE LAND USE Avg PASS-BY Pk/Daily VMT IMPACT LAND USE

CODE UNIT (11) SIZE (9) PM DAILY TRIPS (4) K-Factor RATE / UNIT (5) UNIT

PM Avg K-factor  = Avg Daily Fee/Trip  =

ITE
LAND USE

NAME

ITE GROSS TRIP 
RATE / UNIT (3)

Automobile-related Sales

Auto Parts Sales 843 1000 sq. ft. 8 5.98 61.91 50% 9.7% 30.96 13,338$       

Auto Care Center (Multiple Stores) 942 1000 sq. ft. 12 3.11 38.87 20% 8.0% 31.10 11,098$       

Car Sales, New and Used 841 1000 sq. ft. 30 2.62 32.30 10% 8.1% 29.07 10,518$       

Automobile Servicing

Gasoline/Service Station no Mini-Mart 944 V.S.P.  (1) 8 13.87 168.56 80% 8.2% 33.71 12,374$       
Self-Service Car Wash 947 V.S.P.  (1) 7 5.54 75.00 50% 7.4% 37.50 12,356$       
Gasoline/Service Station with Mini-
Mart 945 V.S.P.  (1) 10 13.51 162.78 80% 8.3% 32.56 12,053$       
Quick-Lube Vehicle Shop 941 V.S.P.  (1) 2 5.19 40.00 50% 13.0% 20.00 11,576$       
Tire Store 848, 849 V.S.P.  (1) 8 3.32 32.00 50% 10.4% 16.00 7,405$         

Social-Recreational Activities
Coffee and Donut Shop w/o Drive-
Throuth Window 936 1000 sq. ft. 4 40.75 503.09 80% 8.1% 100.62 36,355$       
Fast-Food Restaurant with Drive- 
Through Window 934 1000 sq. ft. 4 32.65 496.12 80% 6.6% 99.22 29,128$       

Library 590 1000 sq. ft. 16 7.30 56.24 10% 13.0% 50.62 29,307$       

Quality Restaurant 931 1000 sq. ft. 9 7.49 89.95 20% 8.3% 71.96 26,729$       

Sit-Down Restaurant 932 1000 sq. ft. 6 9.85 127.15 50% 7.7% 63.58 21,969$       
Lodge/Fraternal Organization, with 
dining facilities 591 1000 sq. ft. n/a 6.00 48.00 10% 12.5% 43.20 24,088$       

Health/Fitness Club 492 1000 sq. ft. 36 3.53 32.93 10% 10.7% 29.64 14,172$       

Bowling Alley 437 1000 sq. ft. 24 1.71 33.33 10% 5.1% 30.00 6,865$         

Recreational Community Center 495 1000 sq. ft. 65 2.74 33.82 10% 8.1% 30.44 11,000$       

Racquet/Tennis Club 491 1000 sq. ft. 48 0.84 14.03 10% 6.0% 12.63 3,372$         

Notes:
(1) V.S.P. (Vehicle Servicing Position) = space provided for one vehicle to be fueled or washed; not necessarily "pumps" or "hoses"
(2) Use total rooms for hotel/motel; 15% vacancy factor is incorporated in gross trip rate.  Excludes facilities with major restaurants and meeting places.
(3) ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th edition.  Some ITE rates are smoothed and averaged to eliminate statistically insignificant differences.
(4) Pass-by Reduction eliminates trips diverted from the stream of traffic "passing by" a retail site,  which add no vehicle-miles of impact on the road system.
(5) Net New VMT Impact Trip Rate = ITE Gross Trip Rate  *  ( 1 - % Pass-by) .  
(6)  For shopping centers over 65,000 sq. ft., see ITE for logarithmic trip rate formula.
(7)  A retirement community is "self-contained" only if it provides a full range of facilities on-site for medical care, recreation, shopping, dining, etc. 
       For "assisted living" retirement facilities serving the non-driving elderly with caregivers employed on-site, use Congregate Care Centers under NON-RETAIL.
(8)  Average size of developments comprising the ITE database.  May be useful to distinguish between otherwise similar-sounding classes. 
(9) Trip rate for any land use not covered by this table shall be determined by the Director of Public Works.
(10) This land use generates heavy truck travel.  Truck surcharge must be calculated.
(11) Units expressed as 1000 sq. ft. refer to habitable gross building area, not land area.  Units expressed as "acres" refer to land area.

RETAIL 
Signature elements:  non-residential activity with traffic generated mainly by customers or 
patrons, not employees.  Inbound and outbound are roughly equal most of the day.  Some 
public facilities are thus "retail".

69 of 96



David Evans and Associates, Inc.C:\Documents and Settings\slyons\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\9PKU6I8H\Appendix B - Trip Rate Table-ITE 9th Edition- 12_1026.xlsx

Appendix B.  Traffic Impact Rate Table 0.091 406$            

This table uses ITE (3) driveway trip rates, with adjustments, to derive the net new impact per unit of development, in vehicle-miles-traveled (VMT).  See ITE for details of land use categories. (9)

ITE ITE ITE DISCOUNT ITE NET DAILY FEE PER
LAND USE LAND USE Avg PASS-BY Pk/Daily VMT IMPACT LAND USE

CODE UNIT (11) SIZE (9) PM DAILY TRIPS (4) K-Factor RATE / UNIT (5) UNIT

PM Avg K-factor  = Avg Daily Fee/Trip  =

ITE
LAND USE

NAME

ITE GROSS TRIP 
RATE / UNIT (3)

Community Retail Focus

Walk-in Bank 911 1000 sq. ft. 5 12.13 156.48 65% 7.8% 54.77 18,938$       

Drive-in Bank 912 1000 sq. ft. 4 24.30 148.15 75% 16.4% 37.04 27,099$       

Convenience Market 851 - 853 1000 sq. ft. 3 50.00 640.00 85% 7.8% 96.00 33,455$       

DVD/Video Rental Store 896 1000 sq. ft. 7 13.60 140.00 55% 9.7% 63.00 27,300$       

Pharmacy/Drug Store 880, 881 1000 sq. ft. 13 8.71 89.10 30% 9.8% 62.37 27,203$       
Supermarket and Discount 
Supermarket 850, 854 1000 sq. ft. 62 10.45 102.24 45% 10.2% 56.23 25,638$       

Hardware/Paint Store 816 1000 sq. ft. 21 4.84 51.29 25% 9.4% 38.47 16,192$       

Building Materials & Lumber Store 812 1000 sq. ft. 11 4.49 45.16 20% 9.9% 36.13 16,023$       
Apparel Store 876 1000 sq. ft. 5 3.83 66.40 20% 5.8% 53.12 13,668$       
Shopping Center, under 65,000 sq. 
ft.(6) 820 1000 sq. ft. 50 3.71 42.70 50% 8.7% 21.35 8,275$         

Specialty Retail Center (Strip Mall) 826 1000 sq. ft. 105 2.71 44.32 20% 6.1% 35.46 9,671$         

Destination Retail Focus

1 Free-Standing Discount Store 815 1000 sq. ft. 111 4.98 57.24 30% 8.7% 40.07 15,550$       

2 Toy/Children's Superstore 864 1000 sq. ft. 46 4.99 60.00 30% 8.3% 42.00 15,581$       

3
Discount Club                                                      
(Membership Warehouse Store) 857 1000 sq. ft. 112 4.18 41.80 20% 10.0% 33.44 14,917$       

4 Electronics Superstore 863 1000 sq. ft. 37 4.50 45.04 30% 10.0% 31.53 14,051$       

5 Free-Standing Discount Superstore 813 1000 sq. ft. 154 4.35 50.75 20% 8.6% 40.60 15,523$       

6 Factory Outlet Center 823 1000 sq. ft. 146 2.29 26.59 10% 8.6% 23.93 9,194$         

7 Home Improvement Superstore 862 1000 sq. ft. 100 2.33 30.74 10% 7.6% 27.67 9,354$         

8 Furniture Store 890 1000 sq. ft. 67 0.45 5.06 10% 8.9% 4.55 1,807$         

11 Nursery (Garden Center) 817 Acres 4 8.06 108.10 10% 7.5% 97.29 32,358$       

12 Nursery (Wholesale) 818 Acres 24 0.45 19.50 10% 2.3% 17.55 1,807$         

State Motor Vehicles 
Department/Licensing Agency 731 1000 sq. ft. 10 17.09 166.02 30% 10.3% 116.21 53,364$       

US Post Office 732 1000 sq. ft. 31 11.22 108.19 60% 10.4% 43.28 20,020$       

Medical/Dental Office or Clinic 630, 720 1000 sq. ft. 71 3.66 33.00 10% 11.1% 29.70 14,694$       

Day Care Center 565 1000 sq. ft. 4 12.34 74.06 80% 16.7% 14.81 11,009$       

Hospital 610 1000 sq. ft. 500 0.93 13.22 10% 7.0% 11.90 3,734$         

Hotel/Motel - No Convention Facilities
310-312, 

320
Total 

Rooms (2) 200 0.53 6.50 10% 8.2% 5.85 2,128$         

Notes:
(1) V.S.P. (Vehicle Servicing Position) = space provided for one vehicle to be fueled or washed; not necessarily "pumps" or "hoses"
(2) Use total rooms for hotel/motel; 15% vacancy factor is incorporated in gross trip rate.  Excludes facilities with major restaurants and meeting places.
(3) ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th edition.  Some ITE rates are smoothed and averaged to eliminate statistically insignificant differences.
(4) Pass-by Reduction eliminates trips diverted from the stream of traffic "passing by" a retail site,  which add no vehicle-miles of impact on the road system.
(5) Net New VMT Impact Trip Rate = ITE Gross Trip Rate  *  ( 1 - % Pass-by) .  
(6)  For shopping centers over 65,000 sq. ft., see ITE for logarithmic trip rate formula.
(7)  A retirement community is "self-contained" only if it provides a full range of facilities on-site for medical care, recreation, shopping, dining, etc. 
       For "assisted living" retirement facilities serving the non-driving elderly with caregivers employed on-site, use Congregate Care Centers under NON-RETAIL.
(8)  Average size of developments comprising the ITE database.  May be useful to distinguish between otherwise similar-sounding classes. 
(9) Trip rate for any land use not covered by this table shall be determined by the Director of Public Works.
(10) This land use generates heavy truck travel.  Truck surcharge must be calculated.
(11) Units expressed as 1000 sq. ft. refer to habitable gross building area, not land area.  Units expressed as "acres" refer to land area.

SPECIAL CASES Signature Elements:  Characteristics not matched with groups above

RETAIL 
Signature elements:  non-residential activity with traffic generated mainly by customers or 
patrons, not employees.  Inbound and outbound are roughly equal most of the day.  Some 
public facilities are thus "retail".

70 of 96



David Evans and Associates, Inc.C:\Documents and Settings\slyons\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\9PKU6I8H\Appendix B - Trip Rate Table-ITE 9th Edition- 12_1026.xlsx

Appendix B.  Traffic Impact Rate Table 0.091 514$            

This table uses ITE (3) driveway trip rates, with adjustments, to derive the net new impact per unit of development, in vehicle-miles-traveled (VMT).  See ITE for details of land use categories. (9)

ITE ITE ITE DISCOUNT ITE NET DAILY FEE PER
LAND USE LAND USE Avg PASS-BY Pk/Daily VMT IMPACT LAND USE

CODE UNIT (11) SIZE (9) PM DAILY TRIPS (4) K-Factor RATE / UNIT (5) UNIT

Single-Family (Detached) Housing 210 Dwelling 214 1.00 9.52 0% 10.5% 9.52 5,652$         

Duplex (Detached) Housing use 210 Dwelling same 1.00 9.52 0% 10.5% 9.52 5,652$         

Multifamily, 3+ Bedrooms use 231 Dwelling 234 0.78 7.41 0% 10.5% 7.41 4,408$         

Multifamily, under 3 Bedrooms
 blend 220, 
221, 230 Dwelling 250 0.60 6.00 0% 10.0% 6.00 3,391$         

Mobile Home Park 240 Dwelling 168 0.59 4.99 0% 11.8% 4.99 3,335$         
Self-contained Retirement Community 
(7) 251 Dwelling 862 0.27 3.68 0% 7.3% 3.68 1,526$         

Senior Adult Housing-Attached 252 Dwelling 147 0.25 3.44 0% 7.3% 3.44 1,413$         
Congregate Care Facility, Nursing 
Home, Elderly Housing (Attached)

     please see Non-Retail, assisted living facilities

Employment Centers

Office Building  (Single  Building)
blend 710, 
714, 715 1000 sq. ft. 150-300 1.50 11.42 0% 13.1% 11.42 8,478$         

Office Park (Multiple Buildings) 750 1000 sq. ft. 370 1.48 11.42 0% 13.0% 11.42 8,365$         

Business Park  (Multiple Buildings) 770 1000 sq. ft. 379 1.26 12.44 0% 10.1% 12.44 7,121$         

Research & Development Center 760 1000 sq. ft. 306 1.07 8.11 0% 13.2% 8.11 6,047$         %T(10)

General Light Industrial 110 1000 sq. ft. 357 0.97 6.97 0% 13.9% 6.97 5,482$         %T(10)

Industrial Park 130 1000 sq. ft. 447 0.85 6.83 0% 12.4% 6.83 4,804$         %T(10)

Manufacturing 140 1000 sq. ft. 325 0.73 3.82 0% 19.1% 3.82 4,126$         %T(10)

General Heavy Industrial 120 1000 sq. ft. 1544 0.68 1.50 0% 45.3% 1.50 3,843$         %T(10)

Trucking and Storage Facilities

1 Warehousing (Industrial) 150 1000 sq. ft. 354 0.32 3.56 0% 9.0% 3.56 1,809$         %T(10)

2 Mini-Warehouse (Self-Service 
Storage) 151 1000 sq. ft. 58 0.26 2.50 0% 10.4% 2.50 1,469$         

3
High-Cube Warehouse/Distribution 
Center 152 1000 sq. ft. 302 0.12 1.68 0% 7.1% 1.68 678$            %T(10)

4 Intermodal Truck Terminal 30 Acres 12 6.55 81.90 0% 8.0% 81.90 37,019$       %T(10)

Institutions

Church, with Weekday Programs 560 1000 sq. ft. 17 2.00 30.00 20% 6.7% 24.00 9,043$         

High School 530 1000 sq. ft. 225 0.97 12.89 10% 7.5% 11.60 4,934$         

Elementary and Junior High School 520 1000 sq. ft. 55 0.20 14.49 20% 1.4% 11.59 904$            

Church, No Weekday Programs 560 1000 sq. ft. 17 0.40 6.00 0% 6.7% 6.00 2,261$         

Assisted Living  Facilities

Nursing Home 620 Beds 99 0.22 2.74 10% 8.0% 2.47 1,119$         
Congregate Care Facility, Elderly 
Housing (Attached) 253 Living unit 164 0.17 2.02 10% 8.4% 1.82 865$            

Notes:
(1) V.S.P. (Vehicle Servicing Position) = space provided for one vehicle to be fueled or washed; not necessarily "pumps" or "hoses"
(2) Use total rooms for hotel/motel; 15% vacancy factor is incorporated in gross trip rate.  Excludes facilities with major restaurants and meeting places.
(3) ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th edition.  Some ITE rates are smoothed and averaged to eliminate statistically insignificant differences.
(4) Pass-by Reduction eliminates trips diverted from the stream of traffic "passing by" a retail site,  which add no vehicle-miles of impact on the road system.
(5) Net New VMT Impact Trip Rate = ITE Gross Trip Rate  *  ( 1 - % Pass-by) .  
(6)  For shopping centers over 65,000 sq. ft., see ITE for logarithmic trip rate formula.
(7)  A retirement community is "self-contained" only if it provides a full range of facilities on-site for medical care, recreation, shopping, dining, etc. 
       For "assisted living" retirement facilities serving the non-driving elderly with caregivers employed on-site, use Congregate Care Centers under NON-RETAIL.
(8)  Average size of developments comprising the ITE database.  May be useful to distinguish between otherwise similar-sounding classes. 
(9) Trip rate for any land use not covered by this table shall be determined by the Director of Public Works.
(10) This land use generates heavy truck travel.  Truck surcharge must be calculated.
(11) Units expressed as 1000 sq. ft. refer to habitable gross building area, not land area.  Units expressed as "acres" refer to land area.

PM Avg K-factor  =

NON-RETAIL 
Signature elements:  places where most traffic is generated by employees, rather than 
customers, patrons or residents.  Includes some public facilities and some assisted-living 
types of residential facilities.  Peak hour main direction varies.

Avg Daily Fee/Trip  =

ITE
LAND USE

NAME

RESIDENTIAL Signature elements:  places where people live with active lifestyles.  Afternoon peak hour 
traffic is mainly inbound.  

ITE GROSS TRIP 
RATE / UNIT (3)

ATTACHMENT 2

71 of 96



David Evans and Associates, Inc.C:\Documents and Settings\slyons\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\9PKU6I8H\Appendix B - Trip Rate Table-ITE 9th Edition- 12_1026.xlsx

Appendix B.  Traffic Impact Rate Table 0.091 514$            

This table uses ITE (3) driveway trip rates, with adjustments, to derive the net new impact per unit of development, in vehicle-miles-traveled (VMT).  See ITE for details of land use categories. (9)

ITE ITE ITE DISCOUNT ITE NET DAILY FEE PER
LAND USE LAND USE Avg PASS-BY Pk/Daily VMT IMPACT LAND USE

CODE UNIT (11) SIZE (9) PM DAILY TRIPS (4) K-Factor RATE / UNIT (5) UNIT

PM Avg K-factor  = Avg Daily Fee/Trip  =

ITE
LAND USE

NAME

ITE GROSS TRIP 
RATE / UNIT (3)

Automobile-related Sales

Auto Parts Sales 843 1000 sq. ft. 8 5.98 61.91 50% 9.7% 30.96 16,899$       

Auto Care Center (Multiple Stores) 942 1000 sq. ft. 12 3.11 38.87 20% 8.0% 31.10 14,061$       

Car Sales, New and Used 841 1000 sq. ft. 30 2.62 32.30 10% 8.1% 29.07 13,327$       

Automobile Servicing

Gasoline/Service Station no Mini-Mart 944 V.S.P.  (1) 8 13.87 168.56 80% 8.2% 33.71 15,678$       
Self-Service Car Wash 947 V.S.P.  (1) 7 5.54 75.00 50% 7.4% 37.50 15,655$       
Gasoline/Service Station with Mini-
Mart 945 V.S.P.  (1) 10 13.51 162.78 80% 8.3% 32.56 15,271$       
Quick-Lube Vehicle Shop 941 V.S.P.  (1) 2 5.19 40.00 50% 13.0% 20.00 14,666$       
Tire Store 848, 849 V.S.P.  (1) 8 3.32 32.00 50% 10.4% 16.00 9,382$         

Social-Recreational Activities
Coffee and Donut Shop w/o Drive-
Throuth Window 936 1000 sq. ft. 4 40.75 503.09 80% 8.1% 100.62 46,062$       
Fast-Food Restaurant with Drive- 
Through Window 934 1000 sq. ft. 4 32.65 496.12 80% 6.6% 99.22 36,906$       

Library 590 1000 sq. ft. 16 7.30 56.24 10% 13.0% 50.62 37,132$       

Quality Restaurant 931 1000 sq. ft. 9 7.49 89.95 20% 8.3% 71.96 33,865$       

Sit-Down Restaurant 932 1000 sq. ft. 6 9.85 127.15 50% 7.7% 63.58 27,835$       
Lodge/Fraternal Organization, with 
dining facilities 591 1000 sq. ft. n/a 6.00 48.00 10% 12.5% 43.20 30,519$       

Health/Fitness Club 492 1000 sq. ft. 36 3.53 32.93 10% 10.7% 29.64 17,956$       

Bowling Alley 437 1000 sq. ft. 24 1.71 33.33 10% 5.1% 30.00 8,698$         

Recreational Community Center 495 1000 sq. ft. 65 2.74 33.82 10% 8.1% 30.44 13,937$       

Racquet/Tennis Club 491 1000 sq. ft. 48 0.84 14.03 10% 6.0% 12.63 4,273$         

Notes:
(1) V.S.P. (Vehicle Servicing Position) = space provided for one vehicle to be fueled or washed; not necessarily "pumps" or "hoses"
(2) Use total rooms for hotel/motel; 15% vacancy factor is incorporated in gross trip rate.  Excludes facilities with major restaurants and meeting places.
(3) ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th edition.  Some ITE rates are smoothed and averaged to eliminate statistically insignificant differences.
(4) Pass-by Reduction eliminates trips diverted from the stream of traffic "passing by" a retail site,  which add no vehicle-miles of impact on the road system.
(5) Net New VMT Impact Trip Rate = ITE Gross Trip Rate  *  ( 1 - % Pass-by) .  
(6)  For shopping centers over 65,000 sq. ft., see ITE for logarithmic trip rate formula.
(7)  A retirement community is "self-contained" only if it provides a full range of facilities on-site for medical care, recreation, shopping, dining, etc. 
       For "assisted living" retirement facilities serving the non-driving elderly with caregivers employed on-site, use Congregate Care Centers under NON-RETAIL.
(8)  Average size of developments comprising the ITE database.  May be useful to distinguish between otherwise similar-sounding classes. 
(9) Trip rate for any land use not covered by this table shall be determined by the Director of Public Works.
(10) This land use generates heavy truck travel.  Truck surcharge must be calculated.
(11) Units expressed as 1000 sq. ft. refer to habitable gross building area, not land area.  Units expressed as "acres" refer to land area.

RETAIL 
Signature elements:  non-residential activity with traffic generated mainly by customers or 
patrons, not employees.  Inbound and outbound are roughly equal most of the day.  Some 
public facilities are thus "retail".

72 of 96



David Evans and Associates, Inc.C:\Documents and Settings\slyons\Local Settings\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\9PKU6I8H\Appendix B - Trip Rate Table-ITE 9th Edition- 12_1026.xlsx

Appendix B.  Traffic Impact Rate Table 0.091 514$            

This table uses ITE (3) driveway trip rates, with adjustments, to derive the net new impact per unit of development, in vehicle-miles-traveled (VMT).  See ITE for details of land use categories. (9)

ITE ITE ITE DISCOUNT ITE NET DAILY FEE PER
LAND USE LAND USE Avg PASS-BY Pk/Daily VMT IMPACT LAND USE

CODE UNIT (11) SIZE (9) PM DAILY TRIPS (4) K-Factor RATE / UNIT (5) UNIT

PM Avg K-factor  = Avg Daily Fee/Trip  =

ITE
LAND USE

NAME

ITE GROSS TRIP 
RATE / UNIT (3)

Community Retail Focus

Walk-in Bank 911 1000 sq. ft. 5 12.13 156.48 65% 7.8% 54.77 23,994$       

Drive-in Bank 912 1000 sq. ft. 4 24.30 148.15 75% 16.4% 37.04 34,334$       

Convenience Market 851 - 853 1000 sq. ft. 3 50.00 640.00 85% 7.8% 96.00 42,388$       

DVD/Video Rental Store 896 1000 sq. ft. 7 13.60 140.00 55% 9.7% 63.00 34,589$       

Pharmacy/Drug Store 880, 881 1000 sq. ft. 13 8.71 89.10 30% 9.8% 62.37 34,466$       
Supermarket and Discount 
Supermarket 850, 854 1000 sq. ft. 62 10.45 102.24 45% 10.2% 56.23 32,483$       

Hardware/Paint Store 816 1000 sq. ft. 21 4.84 51.29 25% 9.4% 38.47 20,516$       

Building Materials & Lumber Store 812 1000 sq. ft. 11 4.49 45.16 20% 9.9% 36.13 20,301$       
Apparel Store 876 1000 sq. ft. 5 3.83 66.40 20% 5.8% 53.12 17,317$       
Shopping Center, under 65,000 sq. 
ft.(6) 820 1000 sq. ft. 50 3.71 42.70 50% 8.7% 21.35 10,484$       

Specialty Retail Center (Strip Mall) 826 1000 sq. ft. 105 2.71 44.32 20% 6.1% 35.46 12,253$       

Destination Retail Focus

1 Free-Standing Discount Store 815 1000 sq. ft. 111 4.98 57.24 30% 8.7% 40.07 19,702$       

2 Toy/Children's Superstore 864 1000 sq. ft. 46 4.99 60.00 30% 8.3% 42.00 19,741$       

3
Discount Club                                                      
(Membership Warehouse Store) 857 1000 sq. ft. 112 4.18 41.80 20% 10.0% 33.44 18,899$       

4 Electronics Superstore 863 1000 sq. ft. 37 4.50 45.04 30% 10.0% 31.53 17,803$       

5 Free-Standing Discount Superstore 813 1000 sq. ft. 154 4.35 50.75 20% 8.6% 40.60 19,668$       

6 Factory Outlet Center 823 1000 sq. ft. 146 2.29 26.59 10% 8.6% 23.93 11,648$       

7 Home Improvement Superstore 862 1000 sq. ft. 100 2.33 30.74 10% 7.6% 27.67 11,852$       

8 Furniture Store 890 1000 sq. ft. 67 0.45 5.06 10% 8.9% 4.55 2,289$         

11 Nursery (Garden Center) 817 Acres 4 8.06 108.10 10% 7.5% 97.29 40,998$       

12 Nursery (Wholesale) 818 Acres 24 0.45 19.50 10% 2.3% 17.55 2,289$         

State Motor Vehicles 
Department/Licensing Agency 731 1000 sq. ft. 10 17.09 166.02 30% 10.3% 116.21 67,612$       

US Post Office 732 1000 sq. ft. 31 11.22 108.19 60% 10.4% 43.28 25,365$       

Medical/Dental Office or Clinic 630, 720 1000 sq. ft. 71 3.66 33.00 10% 11.1% 29.70 18,617$       

Day Care Center 565 1000 sq. ft. 4 12.34 74.06 80% 16.7% 14.81 13,948$       

Hospital 610 1000 sq. ft. 500 0.93 13.22 10% 7.0% 11.90 4,730$         

Hotel/Motel - No Convention Facilities
310-312, 

320
Total 

Rooms (2) 200 0.53 6.50 10% 8.2% 5.85 2,696$         

Notes:
(1) V.S.P. (Vehicle Servicing Position) = space provided for one vehicle to be fueled or washed; not necessarily "pumps" or "hoses"
(2) Use total rooms for hotel/motel; 15% vacancy factor is incorporated in gross trip rate.  Excludes facilities with major restaurants and meeting places.
(3) ITE Trip Generation Manual, 9th edition.  Some ITE rates are smoothed and averaged to eliminate statistically insignificant differences.
(4) Pass-by Reduction eliminates trips diverted from the stream of traffic "passing by" a retail site,  which add no vehicle-miles of impact on the road system.
(5) Net New VMT Impact Trip Rate = ITE Gross Trip Rate  *  ( 1 - % Pass-by) .  
(6)  For shopping centers over 65,000 sq. ft., see ITE for logarithmic trip rate formula.
(7)  A retirement community is "self-contained" only if it provides a full range of facilities on-site for medical care, recreation, shopping, dining, etc. 
       For "assisted living" retirement facilities serving the non-driving elderly with caregivers employed on-site, use Congregate Care Centers under NON-RETAIL.
(8)  Average size of developments comprising the ITE database.  May be useful to distinguish between otherwise similar-sounding classes. 
(9) Trip rate for any land use not covered by this table shall be determined by the Director of Public Works.
(10) This land use generates heavy truck travel.  Truck surcharge must be calculated.
(11) Units expressed as 1000 sq. ft. refer to habitable gross building area, not land area.  Units expressed as "acres" refer to land area.

SPECIAL CASES Signature Elements:  Characteristics not matched with groups above

RETAIL 
Signature elements:  non-residential activity with traffic generated mainly by customers or 
patrons, not employees.  Inbound and outbound are roughly equal most of the day.  Some 
public facilities are thus "retail".

73 of 96



Agenda Item 3 
Covington City Council Meeting 

Date: November 13, 2012 
 
 
 
SUBJECT:  2013 LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  

1. Draft 2013 Legislative Agenda 
2. Briefing Sheets 

a. SR 516 
b. Covington Community Park, Phase II (New project) 
c. Town Center Study 

 
PREPARED BY:  Derek Matheson, City Manager 
 
EXPLANATION:  
The City Council adopts a legislative agenda every year.  The attached draft is revised from 2012 
to remove issues that have been resolved and add issues that have arisen.  Staff will review the 
agenda with 47th District legislators later this fall. 
 
ALTERNATIVES:   

1. Provide alternate direction to staff. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Staff time 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:    Ordinance             Resolution      X    Motion               Other  
 

Councilmember ____________ moves, Councilmember ______________ 
seconds to adopt the 2013 Legislative Agenda. 

 
REVIEWED BY:  Management Team 
 

74 of 96



 
City of Covington 

2013-14 Legislative Agenda 
Adopted by the City Council __/__/__ 

 
The City of Covington will actively lobby the following issues: 

Joint Legislative Agenda:  The cities of Black Diamond, Covington, and Maple Valley will continue to advocate 
jointly for federal and state funding for State Route 169 and State Route 516 improvements and for transit 
alternatives in the three rapidly growing communities.  

State-Shared Revenues:  Retain state-shared revenues including liquor profits and taxes. 

Project-Specific Funding Requests:  Retain/enhance/seek funding for the following projects, in priority order: 
1. SR 516, Jenkins Creek to 185th Avenue SE  
2. Covington Community Park, Phase II  
3. Covington Town Center Economic Impact & Infrastructure Cost Study  

Infrastructure Funding:  Support increased funding for cities’ infrastructure design and construction needs, 
including but not limited to the surface transportation program (MAP-21) and Land & Water Conservation Fund 
(LWCF) at the federal level; and the Washington Wildlife and Recreation Program (WWRP), Public Works Trust 
Fund (PWTF), street utility concept, and transportation-package discussions at the state level. 

The City of Covington will support efforts by others to lobby the following issues: 

Medical Marijuana:  Support legislation enabling medical marijuana use. 

Economic Development Funding:  Support constitutional amendments and/or legislation to create pure tax 
increment financing.  Support funding for the Local Infrastructure Financing Tool (LIFT) and Local Revitalization 
Financing (LRF) programs.  Support efforts to make LIFT and LRF simpler, more flexible, and user-friendlier. 

Tax Exemptions:  Exempt cities’ capital projects from the sales tax, and exempt utility and enterprise revenues 
from the state business and occupations tax. 

Simple Majority:  Support legislation to replace the supermajority threshold (60%) with a simple majority 
threshold (50%) for local government bond and levy elections. 

Unfunded Mandates:  Oppose unfunded and under-funded mandates on local government.  Support funding for 
existing mandates including the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) requirements. 

Urban Growth Areas:  Provide cities time to annex adjacent land after a county classifies it as urban but before 
development may occur. 

Rail & Transit:  Support Auburn’s efforts to secure an Amtrak stop, and support other parties’ rail advocacy 
efforts when helpful to Southeast King County’s rail and transit advocacy efforts.

AWC & SCA Legislative Programs:  Support the Association of Washington Cities (AWC) and Suburban Cities 
Association (SCA) legislative programs, excluding AWC’s position on LEOFF 2 benefit enhancements.  Support 
other local government professional associations’ legislative programs when consistent with the 
aforementioned programs.1 

                                             
1
 In event of conflict, the order of precedence is 1) Covington, 2) SCA, 3) AWC, 4) others 

Comment [DM1]: Draft dated 10/4/12

Deleted: 2012

Deleted: 11/8/11

Comment [DM2]: We chose not to provide 
specific dollar amounts beginning last year 
because staff supplements this agenda with fact 
sheets that include dollars and are updated as 
needed.

Deleted: <#>Covington Community Park 
soccer field ¶

Deleted: SAFETEA-LU

Deleted: Connecting Washington Task Force, 
and 

Deleted: state funding programs that are 

Deleted: Commuter & Passenger 

ATTACHMENT 1

75 of 96



City of Covington         
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 • Covington, WA 98042 

SR 516 from Jenkins Creek to 185th Ave. SE 
The City of Covington respectfully requests $13.2 million to fund State Route 516 

Jenkins Creek - 185th Ave. SE 

Project Highlights
Improving SR 516 from Jenkins Creek to 185th will spur economic and residential development in eastern 
Covington and remove a significant bottleneck for traffic coming into downtown Covington.  The project will 
widen SR 516 to five lanes from Jenkins Creek to 185th Ave. SE, and widen the Jenkins Creek stream crossing 
and improve the culvert for stream habitat and fish passage. 

Project BenefitsProject Benefits
Widens SR 516 from a two-lane rural section to a five-lane urban arterial to address traffic bottleneck.  
Adds sidewalks along the state highway to accommodate pedestrians and facilitate a walking community. 
New structure over stream will accommodate high water flows during storm events. 
Stream crossing will include design features for salmon and stream habitat. 
Improves the safety and visibility of the roadway with new street lighting. 
Medians and u-turns will control access, improve safety, and maintain access to businesses. 
Landscaping strips between the curb and sidewalk will separate pedestrians from motorists. 

Funding Partnership
The City of Covington respectfully requests that the state contribute $13.2 million to improve SR 516 from 
Jenkins Creek to 185th Ave SE.  Recognizing the positive impact that SR 516 improvements have on the city, 
Covington has already invested $2.3 million of local funding to improve SR 516. As a state highway, SR 516 
would traditionally be the state’s responsibility to maintain and improve. The City has chosen to share this 
obligation with the state, and is now asking the state to contribute funding to move the project forward. 

Current Photo of SR 516, Jenkins Creek – 185th                After Project Improvements are Completed

Contact Information
Glenn Akramoff, Public Works Director • gakramoff@covingtonwa.gov • (253) 480-2461 
Don Vondran, PE, Senior City Engineer • dvondran@covingtonwa.gov • (253) 480-2462 

ATTACHMENT 2a

76 of 96

mailto:gakramoff@covingtonwa.gov
mailto:dvondran@covingtonwa.gov


          
City of Covington          
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 • Covington, WA 98042  

 

R:\dmatheson\Private\Legislative\Briefing Sheets\Fact Sheet, 2012-11-07.docx 

 
Briefing Sheet 

Covington Community Park Construction 

The City of Covington respectfully requests $2.6 million in capital 
funding for Covington Community Park 

 
 
Project Highlights 

Phase II of Covington Community Park will 
provide the city’s first and only community event 
stage, group picnic shelters, outdoor exercise 
equipment and tennis courts, along with associated 
parking and an extended trail system that connects 
with the Green-to-Cedar regional trail leading to 
Flaming Geyser State Park. 
 
Project Need 

In a recent community survey, community events 
along with health and fitness programs were highly 
rated needs.  The phase II construction project 
provides important local facilities so families and 
youth living in the fast growing Covington 
community don’t need to travel to neighboring 
cities for recreational opportunities. 
 
Funding Details  

Covington has worked hard to fund its community 
park through partnerships with the state and local 
partners.  The first phase of the project was funded 
with $2.2 million in local resources and state 
funding.   Previous city park projects have been 
funded entirely by local resources.  The requested 
$2.6 million state capital investment will be the 
last allocation of funding needed before 
construction begins for phase II of the project.  
The City can adapt the construction schedule to 
accommodate a smaller amount of funding if the 
full request is not available. 
 
Contact Information 

Scott Thomas, Parks and Recreation Director     •     sthomas@covingtonwa.gov     •     (253) 480-2481 

Covngton 

Community 

Park 

Tahoma High School 
Tahoma High School 

Covington 

Aquatic 

Center 

Covington 

Community 

Park 

ATTACHMENT 2b

77 of 96



  

City of Covington         
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 • Covington, WA 98042 

Briefing Sheet 

Revised 11-7-12

Town Center Economic Impact & Infrastructure Cost Study 
The City of Covington respectfully requests $50,000 to complete a 

Town Center Study 

Project Highlights   
With its birth as an unincorporated community 
crossroads, Covington naturally evolved as a retail 
shopping area oriented to vehicular travel and was not 
developed with complete transportation systems or a 
true downtown.  Since incorporation, the community 
has consistently expressed the desire for a central 
gathering place. 

The town center will offer:
A traditional “main street” with slow-moving 
traffic and on-street parking.  
A public plaza for local events, celebrations, 
and cultural activities. 
A civic center with mixed-use, multiple-story buildings. 
Opportunities for private development, including retail, office, and residential development in 
mixed-use and stand-alone formats.  

Project Need & Benefits
The city is seeking $50,000 for a Town Center Economic Impact & Infrastructure Cost Study.  This study 
will determine the town center concept’s economic impact (including job creation and tax revenue 
generation) and infrastructure costs.  The information will position the city to seek the grants necessary to 

fund town center infrastructure and 
catalyze private investment. 

Funding Details
This project is currently unfunded.  

Project Schedule
Dependent on funding. 

Contact Information
Derek Matheson, City Manager  
dmatheson@covingtonwa.gov 
(253) 480-2405  

ATTACHMENT 2c

78 of 96



    Agenda Item 4 
 Covington City Council Meeting   
 Date: November 13, 2012 
 
SUBJECT:  2012 THIRD QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 
RECOMMENDED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
                                          
ATTACHMENT(S):   

1. 2012 Third Quarter Report 
2. Quarterly Performance Reports by Fund 
3. Major Revenue Review 

 
PREPARED BY:  Rob Hendrickson, Finance Director 
 
EXPLANATION: 
It is the policy of the City and a requirement of state law (RCW 35A.34.240) to provide financial 
reports to the governing body on a quarterly basis.  
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
CITY COUNCIL ACTION:          Ordinance            Resolution _____Motion       X   Other 
 

NO ACTION NECESSARY AT THIS MEETING  
 

REVIEWED BY:  City Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79 of 96



ATTACHMENT 1

80 of 96



81 of 96



82 of 96



83 of 96



84 of 96



85 of 96



86 of 96



ATTACHMENT 2

87 of 96



88 of 96



89 of 96



90 of 96



91 of 96



92 of 96



ATTACHMENT 3

93 of 96



  
Covington City Council Meeting 
           Date: November 13, 2012  

 
 
 
 

DISCUSSION OF  
FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS: 

 
 

November 27, 2012 – City Council Regular Meeting  
 

 (Draft Agenda Attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

94 of 96



Covington: Unmatched quality of life 
CITY OF COVINGTON 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
www.covingtonwa.gov 

 
Tuesday, November 27, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers 
7:00 p.m.                                                                   16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100, Covington 

 
CALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER 
   
ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

• Suburban Cities Association Presentation (Deanna Dawson, Executive Director) 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT Persons addressing the Council shall state their name, address, and organization for the record. Speakers 
shall address comments to the City Council, not the audience or the staff. Public Comment is not intended for conversation or debate.  Comments 
shall be limited to no more than four minutes per person and no more than ten minutes per group.  If additional time is needed the city shall be 
notified in advance and background information shall be submitted in writing regarding the topic that will be addressed.  The city reserves the 
right to deny any request, based on time constraints. Individuals may petition the City Clerk or the City Manager to appear on the agenda of a 
future study session as time allows for up to 15 minutes to address the council on specific issues or requests.* 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
C-1. Minutes:  November 13,  2012 Regular Meeting Minutes (Scott) 
C-2. Vouchers (Hendrickson) 
C-3. Accept Department of Commerce Aquatics Renovation Grant (Thomas) 
 
REPORTS OF COMMISSIONS 
• Human Services Chair Haris Ahmad:  November 8 meeting. 
• Arts Chair Sandy Bisordi:  November 8 meeting. 
• Budget Priorities Advisory Committee Liaison:  November 7 & 28 meetings. 
• Parks & Recreation Chair Steven Pand:  November 7 special meeting. 
• Planning Chair Daniel Key:  November 1 & 15 meetings. 
• Economic Development Council Co-Chair Jeff Wagner:  October 25 meeting.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
1. Receive Public Testimony Regarding Proposed Fiscal Year 2013 Budget and Consider 

Ordinance Setting the 2012 Property Tax Levy for Collection in 2013 (Hendrickson)  
 
CONTINUED BUSINESS 
2. Continue Budget Deliberations (Hendrickson) 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
3. Consider Ordinance Authorizing a Property Tax Increase in Terms of Both Dollars and 

Percentages as Required by RCW 84.55.120 (Hendrickson) 

Draft 
as of 11/08/12 

 

95 of 96

http://www.covingtonwa.gov/�


4. Gary Patrick Memorial Motion (Council) 
5. Northern Gateway Study Phase II (Hart) 
6. Accept King Conservation District Parks Grant (Thomas) 
 
COUNCIL/STAFF COMMENTS - Future Agenda Topics 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (*See Guidelines on Public Comments above in First Public Comment Section) 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION – If Needed 
   
ADJOURN  
 
Any person requiring disability accommodation should contact the City of Covington at 253-480-2400 a minimum of 24 hours in 
advance.  For TDD relay service, please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial 253-
480-2400.  

96 of 96


	11-13-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, November 13, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA

	Consent Item 1 Green Sheet 11-13-2012 Minutes Approval
	Consent Agenda Item C-1

	Consent Item 1 Attachment 1 10.09.2012 Reg CC
	Consent Item 1 Attachment 2 10.23.2012 Special Joint Study Session with Arts
	Consent Item 1 Attachment 3 10.23.2012 Reg CC
	Consent Item 1 Attachment 4 11.03.2012 Budget Workshop
	Consent Item 2 Green Sheet Vouchers Approval 11-13-2012
	Consent Agenda Item C-2

	Consent Item 2 Attachment 1
	Agenda Item 1 Blue Sheet 11-13-12 Carpet Replacement
	Agenda Item 1 Attachment 1 Legacy bid
	Agenda Item 2 Blue Sheet 2013 Fee Resolution Update Agenda Blue Sheet
	Agenda Item 2 Attachment 1 Res. 12-___ 2013  Fees Resolution
	PASSED in open and regular session on this 13th day of November 2012.

	Agenda Item 2 Attachment 1_Exhibit A_2013 Fee Notebook_DEV LAND USE_ADMIN
	Agenda Item 2 Attachment 1_Exhibit B_2013 TIF Fees_9th Edition
	PK and Daily Trip Rates-ITE 9th

	Agenda Item 2 Attachment 2_Increased TIF Fees
	PK and Daily Trip Rates-ITE 9th

	Agenda Item 3 11-13-12 Legislative Agenda
	Agenda Item 3

	Agenda Item 3 Attachment 2b
	Agenda Item 4 11-13-12 3rd Qtr Financial Reports
	Agenda Item 4

	Agenda Item 4 Attachments 1-3
	Future Agenda Cover Sheet
	11-27-12 Regular Meeting
	Tuesday, November 27, 2012                                                                     City Council Chambers
	APPROVAL OF AGENDA




